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Chairman’s Statement;
FERS

During the financial year, the Group recorded a gain of
approximately HK$125 million, as compared to a loss of
approximately HK$104 million in the prior period. The
gain was mainly attributable to a substantial gain of
approximately HK$153 million arising from the
deconsolidation of a subsidiary upon its voluntary
winding-up on 29 September 2011. Turnover of the
Group for the year ended 31 March 2012 increased to
approximately HK$2,002 million from approximately
HK$676 million.

In view of the critical business environment faced by the
export-manufacturing industry, the management, after
having carried out a review on the Group’s EMS
operation, had resolved to close down product lines
which reported consecutive net losses, through a
voluntary winding up of a subsidiary, as disclosed in the
announcement dated 30 September 2011.

In April 2011, the Group established a new oil trading
division, engaging principally in the trading of coal, oil
and chemical products and provision of consultancy
The oil trading division has contributed a
turnover of approximately HK$1,901 million for the year
ended 31 March 2012. The management believes that
the new oil trading business will help the Group to
capture new market, increase its profitability and diversify
its business risk.

services.

With the cessation of the loss-making product lines,
downsizing of the EMS operations and the establishment
of the new trading division, the Group managed to
achieve gross profit of approximately HK$4.3 million for
the year ended 31 March 2012, as compared to the
gross loss of approximately HK$6.6 million in the prior
period.

On 29 February 2012, an open offer of 226,576,190
shares was made to the existing shareholders on the
basis of two offer shares for every seven shares held by
the shareholders at a subscription price of HK$0.441 per
offer share. The open offer was completed on 14 March
2012. The new shares rank pari passu in all aspects with
the existing issued shares of the Company.

Ngai Lik Industrial Holdings Limited Annual Report 2012
ROTEEBERAR 2012461

RAREE A - A% B 815 4125,000,00078
TLZ W E - i 2[R A Rl $% 15 £9104,000,0007#
TTZEE e ZWEETEAR —HERNBARARS
E——FNATNHEBESEBRTBEAARK
T 2= A #9153,000,0003% 7T 2 B A 25 Fr 2K -
AREBHE-"ZT——F=A=t—RHIEFEZ
% ¥ Z B 4676,000,0005 T E N E L
2,002,000,00078 7T °

HERHASEXRBEEXRBREAMEHE B
EEHAEBE ZEMSEBETRAR  REE
B-HHNBRARNERBFRGEUEREHS -
E——FNA=ZTHZAMAKE) BEAFE
FEBRZEMR -

REZZFE——FW0A  AEEFKL—EABE
S8 TEREE R - AHMMEIERE
UERREZARY REBEE_T——-—F=F=
T—BLEFERE AHEBESHFAEREEETR
#31,901,000,000%8 7L - EREEEE B2 A
HESEB BB AEEEWGEFMS  BAH
BN R DB EFEBRER -

ERNASEHEBEERSEEBTNRIL - BE
EMSEERERHMEZFEKNALE K& E
REE-ZT——F=-A=+—HLEFESUE
IR 7 F #94,300,0007% 7T+ & F R 2 E &8l
#7 /6,600,000 7T °

R-FB——F-_A-1+IAB ARFAREFAEL

R mEEMEREERDZEE  MRERE
N E 5226,576,190f8 Ik 0 - REBEE AT KE

ERMNOAMNBTT - ARABEER T ——-F=
AtTHBERK - FIRPEARARBREEHTR
MEMBETHZERSHEE -



Going forward, the Group will continue to leverage on
the experience and network of our management and to
develop and establish its oil trading business platform.
The Group will seek to expand its product range and
continue to seek and cover trade areas such as
Singapore and other countries in Asia Pacific region. The
Group will also seek and provide more value added
services to its customers.

In the mean time, the Group endeavors to explore new
business opportunities in order to create value for its
shareholders.

RABMH - NEE R
FEEGEEREALERGE n
BEOFMBR AT ASERRSE 5E
AEENERAREC SRR RHRTE SR
7']'%0

BRI ARERIRAOHEE EHAE
R EEEE

Ngai Lik Industrial Holdings Limited Annual Report 2012 3
RAOTEEBERRAR 20129 ]|



Management Discussion and Analysis of the Group Financial Review
AEEzEEENRE D A %0 E

TURNOVER

The Group’s turnover increased to approximately
HK$2,002 million for the year ended 31 March 2012, an
increase of approximately 196.3% as compared to the
preceding financial period. The rise was mainly
attributable to the new oil trading business which
reported a turnover of approximately HK$1,901 million
during the year.

GROSS PROFIT

The gross profit was about HK$4.3 million for the year
ended 31 March 2012. The turnaround from gross loss
to gross profit was mainly attributable to the Group’s
strategy in gradual elimination of loss-making products
and cut-down of product lines with relatively excessive
overheads, as well as the introduction of new oil trading
business.

EXPENSES

Compared to the preceding financial period, the Group’s
total administrative expenses for the year ended 31
March 2012 decreased by approximately 64% to
approximately HK$31 million. Meanwhile, the Group’s
selling and distribution expenses for the year ended 31
March 2012 dropped by approximately 95% to
approximately HK$421,000, when compared to the
preceding financial period. The Group’s finance costs
amounted to approximately HK$1.2 million, no significant
finance costs were incurred during the preceding financial
period.

WORKING CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

As at 31 March 2012, the Group maintained bank
balances and cash of approximately HK$113 million (31
March 2011: approximately HK$9 million). The increase
was mainly attributable to the open offer completed on
14 March 2012. The Group’s average inventory turnover
days was approximately 63 days (31 March 2011:
approximately 28 days).

FINANCING AND CAPITAL STRUCTURE

For the year ended 31 March 2012, the Group’s total
debts stood at approximately HK$122.3 million (31 March
2011: approximately HK$2.9 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis of the Group Financial R

AEBCEEEBN®WE MU HE

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE ON PROPERTY, PLANT
AND EQUIPMENT

Total capital expenditure for the year was approximately
HK$11,000 (81 March 2011: HK$3.6 million).

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The net assets of the Group as at 31 March 2012 were
HK$92 million (81 March 2011: net liabilities at HK$133
million). The current ratio was approximately 1.4 (31
March 2011: approximately 0.3). Shareholders’ equity was
approximately HK$92 million (31 March 2011:
Shareholders’ deficits of approximately HK$133 million).
The increase was attributable to the significant profit of
HK$125 million for the year and the open offer completed
on 14 March 2012.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 March 2012, bill receivables amounting to
approximately HK$124 million were secured against the
Group’s discounted bills with recourse (31 March 2011:
Nil).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
As at 31 March 2012, the Group had no material capital
commitments.

TREASURY POLICY

The majority of the Group’s sales and purchases are
denominated in US Dollars or RMB. As Hong Kong
Dollars and US Dollars are pegged, the Group had
minimum exposure to foreign exchange fluctuation in this
respect. The Group still monitors the overall currency and
interest rate exposures.

EMPLOYEE INFORMATION

As at 31 March 2012, the Group had approximately 20
employees (31 March 2011: 60). The remuneration
packages are generally structured with reference to
market conditions and the individual qualifications.
Salaries and wages of the Group’s employees are
normally reviewed on an annual basis based on
performance appraisals and other relevant factors.
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Corporate Governance Report

EXRERMSE

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) is
committed to maintain good corporate governance
standard and procedures to ensure the integrity,
transparency and quality of disclosure in order to
enhance the shareholders’ value.

The Company has applied the principles and complied
with all the applicable code provisions of the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices (“Code”) as set out in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rules”) for the year ended 31 March 2012,
save for the deviations discussed below. The Board will
continuously review and improve the corporate
governance practices and standards of the Company to
ensure that business activities and decision making
processes are regulated in a proper and prudent manner.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTION

The Company has adopted the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own
code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
transactions (the “Model Code”). Having made specific
enquiry of all directors of the Company, the directors of
the Company have confirmed that they have fully
complied with the required standard as set out in the
Model Code throughout the year ended 31 March 2012.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at the date of this report, the Board is made up of
six Directors, including two executive Directors, and four
independent non-executive Directors (the “INEDs”). The
Directors are, collective and individually, aware of their
responsibilities to the shareholders. Two of the INEDs
possesses appropriate professional accounting
qualifications and financial management expertise. The
Directors’ biographical details are set out in the section
of “Directors and Senior Management Profiles” on pages
19 to 21.
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The Board members during the year ended 31 March
2012 and as at the date up to this report were:

Executive Director
Mr. Wang Jianqging (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Pan Junfeng

Independent Non-executive Directors
Dr. Leung Hoi Ming

Mr. Wong Chi Keung

Mr. Tom Xie

Mr. Lo Wai Hung

The Board conducts at least four regular Board meetings
a year at approximately quarterly intervals in addition to
other Board meetings that are required for significant and
important issues, and for statutory purposes. Appropriate
and sufficient information is provided to the Board
members in a timely manner to keep them abreast of the
Group’s latest development and thus assist them in
discharging their duties.

During the year, the Board has held nine meetings and

the attendance of the directors at the Board Meetings for
the year ended 31 March 2012 is set out as below:

Name of Directors
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Number of Meetings

EENE HERE SRR
Executive Directors HITEF
Mr. Wang Jianging FEBERE

(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) (EEFITHAEZ) 9/9
Mr. Pan Junfeng EEIE ST AE 5/9
Independent Non-executive Directors BUHHTESE
Dr. Leung Hoi Ming RGHE L 9/9
Mr. Wong Chi Keung = 298t 9/9
Mr. Tom Xie AR SR 5/9
Mr. Lo Wai Hung EREELE 9/9

Board minutes are recorded in appropriate detail and
draft minutes are circulated to all directors and
committee members for comments before being
approved by the Board at the next immediate meeting.
All minutes are kept by the Company Secretary and are
open for inspection by the directors.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERRS

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control
of the Group and oversees the Group’s business,
strategic decisions and financial performance. The Board
delegates to the management team the day-to-day
management of the Company’s business including the
preparation of annual and interim reports, and for
implementation of internal control, business strategies
and plans developed by the Board.

The Company has received from each of its independent
non-executive directors an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules
and considers all the independent non-executive directors
to be independent.

The Board members have no financial, business, family
or other material/relevant relationship with each other
except those disclosed in the director biographical
details.

RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

According to the Company’s Bye-laws, all directors
(including independent non-executive Directors) are
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at annual
general meeting of the Company, notwithstanding that
every Director shall be retired at least once every three
years.

Code Provision A.4.2. of the Code stipulates that all
directors appointed to fill causal vacancy should be
subject to election by shareholders at the first general
meeting after their appointment. On the other hand,
paragraph 4(2) of Appendix 3 of the Listing Rules
provides that such directors are to hold office until the
next following annual general meeting of the Company
and shall then be eligible for re-election at that meeting.
As mentioned in the annual report for FY2006, the Board
decided to leave the existing Bye-laws unchanged given
the inconsistencies in the Listing Rules.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. Wang is the chairman of the Company since 27
January 2011 and was appointed the chief executive
officer (“CEQ”) of the Company on 15 September 2011.
He is responsible for managing the Board and the
businesses of the Group.

Under the Code, the roles of chairman and CEO should
be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual. The division of responsibilities between the
chairman and chief executive officer should be clearly
established and set out in writing.

The Board considers that Mr. Wang possesses the
essential leadership skills to manage the Board and
extensive knowledge in the business of the Group. The
present structure is more suitable to the Company
because it can promote the efficient formulation and
implementation of the Company’s strategies. Through the
supervision of the Board and the audit committee,
balance of power and authority can be ensured and
there is no imminent need to change the arrangement.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees with clearly-
defined written terms of reference. The independent view
and recommendations of the three committees ensure
proper control of the Group and the continual
achievement of the high standard corporate governance
practices.

Remuneration Committee

As at the date of this report, the Remuneration
Committee (the “RC”) comprises three independent non-
executive directors, namely, Dr. Leung Hoi Ming, Mr.
Wong Chi Keung and Mr. Tom Xie.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERRS

The duties of the RC as per the terms of reference were
as follows:

1. to formulate remuneration policy for approval by the
Board, which shall take into consideration factors
such as salaries paid by comparable companies,
employment conditions, and responsibilities, and
individual performance of the directors and senior
management. Performance shall be measured
against corporate goals and objectives resolved by
the Board from time to time; and implement the
remuneration policy laid down by the Board, if any;

2 to consult the chairman and/or chief executive
about their remuneration proposals for other
executive directors. The remuneration committee
should have access to independent professional
advice if necessary;

3. without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing:

(@  make recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for all
directors’ and senior management
remuneration and on the establishment of a
formal and transparent procedure for
developing policy on such remuneration;

(b) review and approve the management’s
remuneration with reference to the Board’s
corporate goals and objectives;

(c) determine with delegated responsibility the
remuneration packages of individual executive
directors and senior management of the
Group, including benefits in kind, pension
rights and compensation payments, including
any compensation payable for loss or
termination of their office or appointment;

(d) make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration of non-executive directors;

(e) consider salaries paid by comparable
companies, time commitment and
responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group;
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review and approve compensation payable to
executive directors and senior management
for any loss or termination of office or
appointment to ensure that it is determined in
accordance with relevant contractual terms
and otherwise fair and not excessive;

to review and approve compensation
arrangements relating to dismissal or removal
of directors for misconduct to ensure that
they are consistent with contractual terms
and are otherwise reasonable and appropriate;

determine the criteria for assessing
employee’s performance, which should reflect
the Company’s business goals, objectives and
targets;

to ensure that no director or any of his
associate is involved in deciding his own
remuneration;

engage external professional advisors to
assist and/or advise the Committee on issues
if necessary;

do any such things to enable the Committee
to discharge its powers and functions
conferred on it by the Board;

conform to any requirement, direction, and
regulation that may from time to time be
prescribed by the Board or contained in the
constitution of the Company or imposed by
legislation;

exercise such other powers, authorities and
discretion, and perform such other duties, of
the directors in relation to the remuneration
as the Board may from time to time delegate
to it, have regard to the Corporate
Governance Code of the Listing Rules; and

advise shareholders on how to vote with
respect to any service contracts of directors
that require shareholders’ approval under the
Listing Rules as amended from time to time.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERRS

The RC has every right to access to professional advice
relating to remuneration proposal if considered necessary.
The RC has begun to review the remuneration policy for
the Directors and senior management.

The RC meets at least once a year. The RC has held

three meetings during the year ended 31 March 2012
and the attendance of the members is as follows:

Name of Members

ERRBAZEBRLT  FHEESAELH M
ERSKEXER -FHZBESGCRKEHE
EREREBANBZHMBE -

FEEEBFELRT REZ -HE-T
——F=A=t+—HUIEFERN FHEZES
BUI=ZREF RELEBROT:

~

£
1B

Number of attendance/
Number of Meetings

BREEZHE HERE &HRE
Dr. Leung Hoi Ming 2GAET 3/3
Mr. Wong Chi Keung &= 298 A 3/3
Mr. Tom Xie RS A 2/3

Audit Committee

As at the date of this report, the Audit Committee (the
“AC”) comprises three independent non-executive
directors, namely, Dr. Leung Hoi Ming, Mr. Wong Chi
Keung and Mr. Tom Xie.

The principal duties of the AC include:

(@) to be responsible for making recommendations to
the board on the appointment, reappointment and
removal of the external auditor, and to approve the
remuneration and terms of engagement of the
external auditor, and any questions of resignation
or dismissal of that auditor;

(b) to review with the group’s management and
external auditor, the adequacy of the group’s
policies and procedures regarding internal controls
(including financial, operational and compliance
controls), risk management system and any
statement by the directors to be included in the
annual accounts prior to endorsement by the
board;

() to review and monitor the external auditor’s
independence and objectivity and the effectiveness
of the audit process in accordance with applicable
standard. The Committee should understand the
factors considered by the external auditors in
determining their audit scope, and should discuss
with the external auditor the nature and scope of
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the audit and reporting obligations before the audit
commencement. The external auditors’ fees is to
be negotiated by management, and presented to
the Committee for review and approval annually;

to review the annual and interim financial reports
prior to approval by the board, with particular focus
on:

(i) any changes
practices;

in accounting policies and

(i) major judgmental areas;

(i) significant adjustments
audit;

resulting from the

(iv) the going concern assumptions and any
qualifications;

(vy  compliance with accounting and auditing
standards; and

(vij  compliance with the Listing Rules and other
legal requirements in relation to financial
reporting;

with regard to (d) above:

(i) members of the Committee should liaise with
the Board and senior management, and the
Committee must meet, at least twice a year,
with the external auditor; and

(i) the Committee should consider any significant
or unusual items that are, or may need to be,
reflected in the reports and accounts, it
should give due consideration to any matters
that have been raised by the Company’s staff
responsible for the accounting and financial
reporting function, compliance officer or
auditor;
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to review the financial controls, internal control and

risk management systems;

to discuss the internal control system with the
management to ensure that management has
performed its duty to have an effective internal
control system, including the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function;

to consider major investigation findings on internal
control matters as delegated by the Board or on its
own initiative and management’s response to these
findings;

to review the Group’s financial and accounting
policies and practices;

to review the external auditor's management letter,
any material queries raised by the auditor to
management about accounting records, financial
accounts or systems of control and management’s
response;

to ensure that the Board will provide a timely
response to the issues raised in the external
auditor’'s management letter;

to review arrangements by which employees of the
Company may, in confidence, raise concerns about
possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal
control or other matters. The Committee should
ensure that proper arrangements are in place for
the fair and independent investigation of such
matters and for appropriate follow-up action;
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to act as the key representative body for overseeing
the Company’s relation with the external auditor,
and to evaluate the cooperation received by the
external auditors, including their access to all
requested records, data and information; obtain the
comments of management regarding the
responsiveness of the external auditors to the
Group’s needs; inquire of the external auditors as
to whether there have been any disagreements with
management which if not satisfactorily resolved
would result in the issue of a qualified report on
the group’s financial statements;

to obtain from the external auditors annually
information about policies and processes for
maintaining independence and monitoring
compliance with relevant requirements, including
provision of non-audit services and requirements
regarding rotation of audit partners and staff;

to discuss with the external auditors any
recommendations arising from the audit (if
necessary in the absence of management);

to meet with the auditor, at least once a year, in
the absence of management to discuss matters
relating to its audit fees, any issue arising from the
audit and any other matters the auditor may wish
to raise;

to the engagement of the external auditors to
perform non-audit services is in general prohibited
except for tax-related services. If a compelling
reason exists to engage the external auditors due
to their unique expertise in a particular area, the
prior approval of the Committee is required;

to review and consider the findings of internal
investigations and management’s response into any
suspected frauds or irregularities or failures of
internal controls or infringements of laws, rules and
regulations;
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TEERRS

() to agree with the Board the Company’s policy
relating to the hiring of employees or former
employees of the external auditors and monitor the
applications of such policy. The Committee shall
consider whether as a result of such hiring there
has been any impairment of the auditor’s judgment
or independence in respect of an audit;

(1) to report to the Board on the above matters; and
(u)  to consider other topics, as defined by the Board.

The AC is authorized by the Board to investigate any
activity and seek any information it requires within its
term of reference. It is also authorized to obtain outside
legal or other independent professional advice and to
secure the attendance of outsiders with relevant
experience and expertise if it considers this necessary.

Reporting to the Board of Directors of the Company, the
AC is dedicated to review and supervise the Group’s
financial reporting process and internal controls. The
financial results for the year ended 31 March 2012 has
been reviewed by the Audit Committee. The AC is
reviewing the internal controls of the Group.
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The AC conducts at least four regular meetings a year in B EANMEBZEZKIUALEFEMNERTZE
addition to other meetings that are required for significant &4 BEREEEBEE L RITUAHIE -
and important issues, and for statutory purposes. The #HZEZE—_ZFE——F#=-A=+—HIFE KEH
attendance of the members at the AC Meetings for the FEXREZES @z 2BERMT :
year ended 31 March 2012 is as follows:

Number of attendance/
Name of Members Number of Meetings
S Z HERY EHIE
Dr. Leung Hoi Ming 2GR E T 4/4
Mr. Wong Chi Keung =798t 4/4
Mr. Tom Xie AR SR 2/4
During the year ended 31 March 2012, the Audit RBZE_ZT——-F=A=+T—HIFE FZ

Committee had reviewed the Company’s annual report
for the year ended 31 March 2012 and the interim report
for the six months ended 30 September 2011.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a Nomination Committee
on 30 March 2012. As at the date of this report, the
Nomination Committee (the “NC”) comprises Mr. Wang
Jianging, the chairman and the executive director of the
Company and two independent non-executive directors,
namely, Dr. Leung Hoi Ming, Mr. Wong Chi Keung.

The duties of the NC as per the terms of reference were
as follows:

@

to review the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, qualifications, knowledge and
experience) of the Board at least annually and
make recommendations on any proposed changes
to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy;

to identify individuals suitably qualified to become
Board members and select or make
recommendations to the Board on the selection of
individuals nominated for directorships. Sufficient
biographical details of nominated candidates shall
be provided to the Board and/or shareholders to
enable them to make an informed decision;

to make recommendations to the Board the
appointment or re-appointment of directors of the
Company and succession planning for directors of
the Company in particular the chairman and the
chief executive of the Company;

to identify and nominate candidates to fill casual
vacancies of directors for the Board’s approval;

to assess the independence of independent non-
executive directors of the Company;

to do any such things to enable the Committee to
discharge its powers and functions conferred on it
by the Board; and

to conform to any requirement, direction, and
regulation that may from time to time be prescribed
by the Board or contained in the constitution of the
Company or imposed by legislation.

Corporate Governance Report
tEERRE

RHZE"
ARARER-E——F=ZA=1+HRIERZ
BE - MARERY - REZ8g ([REZEE))
MARRERRANTEETTEZBELERMETS
VIHAITESE (DR AR ESRBLIREZHREE)
MK o

REBESEE REZBG2BENT:

@)

ELEBERVESTEIRE RAERME
R(BRERKRE  BE MB &R It
TARETARRZEEREEIELZ
BHNEESELEBES:

MEeRBRBEERAETESENEZ
AL UHERRERALHEESTIH
MEESHFELERRS BIRAARZ
ARREABRERTESSR HBRER
BERFELAERE

IARBBEREZRAERERZTTUARAR
AER(LHERARAIERITHRAER)Z
BIAESNEFTSFLERES

MEeErREERESTRREEZR 2 AE
AESSH A

AERNRRBYIFATEST 2B

REERMZETHREZESRTEE
EEEETZENORERE K

NETHHESEREERARRAMEE
RARIOEVERZEMBRE  HERR
R -

Ngai Lik Industrial Holdings Limited Annual Report 2012

BRAOTEEEER AR 2012F #®

17



18

The NC conducts at least one regular meeting a year.
The NC has held one meeting during the year ended 31
March 2012 and the attendance of the members is as
follows:

Name of Members

REZBEBFEL BT RAE -BHE-T
——F=-A=t-BHLFE RRZXEECH
T—REH KEHLEBERNOT

Number of attendance/
Number of Meetings

RElE HERE EHRAH
Mr. Wang Jianging FREBERAE 1/1
Dr. Leung Hoi Ming 2GRAE LT 1/1
Mr. Wong Chi Keung B ZREE 1/1

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the
preparation of the financial statements of the Group and
ensure that the financial statements are in accordance
with statutory requirements and applicable accounting
standard. The Directors also ensure the timely publication
of the financial statements of the Group.

The Statement of external auditors of the Company,
Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statement of the Group is
set out in the Report of Auditors on pages 29 to 30.

The Directors confirm that, to the best of their
knowledge, information and belief, having made all
reasonable enquiries, they are not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 March 2012, the total
remuneration of the Group’s auditor for statutory audit
services is HK$1,000,000. They also provided non-audit
services to the Group, which amounted to HK$250,000.
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Directors and Senior Management Profile
EERGREBEAERN

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wang Jianging

Mr. Wang, aged 43, has extensive experience and
business network in the energy and trading industry. Mr.
Wang obtained his bachelor’s degree in Industrial
Management Engineering from Zhenjiang Shipbuilding
College (now known as the Jiangsu University of Science
and Technology). He is also presently the general
manager of Guangzhou Circle Energy Company Ltd.

Mr. Pan Junfeng

Mr. Pan, aged 55, is currently the deputy general
manager of a shipping company that principally engaged
in oil and bulk goods trading business in Yangtze region.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Leung Hoi Ming

Dr. Leung, aged 44, is currently a director of Toi Shan
Association of Hong Kong Limited. He has extensive
knowledge and experience in risk management of
financial instruments, treasury business and financial
derivative products. He has served DBS Bank Ltd., Hong
Kong Branch for eight years and was a Senior Vice
President in the Treasury and Markets Division upon his
departure from the bank on 22 May 2009.

Dr. Leung started his career in the finance industry in
1996 with Citibank, N.A. and was a quantitative analyst
in the Equity Derivatives Asia Department upon his
departure of Citibank, N.A.. Prior to joining DBS Bank
Ltd., Hong Kong Branch, Dr. Leung held different
positions in trading and risk management divisions of
other financial institutions.

Dr. Leung, a native Hong Kong citizen with Chinese
nationality, holds a Bachelor (First Class Honours) degree
of Science (1990) from the Chinese University of Hong
Kong, a Master degree of Science in Mathematics (1993)
and a Doctor degree of Philosophy in Mathematics (1996)
from the California Institute of Technology, and a Master
degree of Science in Investment Management (1999)
from the Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology.
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Directors and Senior Management Profile

ESRSREEAESHN

Mr. Wong Chi Keung

Mr. Wong, aged 57, holds a master’s degree in business
administration from the University of Adelaide in Australia.
He is a fellow member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, The Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and CPA Australia; an associate
member of The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators and The Chartered Institute of
Management Accountants. Mr. Wong is also a
Responsible Officer for asset management, advising on
securities and advising on corporate finance for Greater
China Capital Limited, under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance of Hong Kong.

Mr. Wong was as an executive director, the deputy
general manager, group financial controller and company
secretary of Yuexiu Property Company Limited (formerly
known as Guangzhou Investment Company Limited) (stock
code: 123), a company listed on the Stock Exchange, for
over ten years. He is currently an independent non-
executive director of each of Asia Orient Holdings Limited
(stock code: 214), Asia Standard International Group
Limited (stock code: 129), Century City International
Holdings Limited (stock code: 355), China Nickel
Resources Holdings Company Limited (stock code:
2889), China Ting Group Holdings Limited (stock code:
3398), ENM Holdings Limited (stock code: 128), First
Natural Foods Holdings Limited (provisional liquidators
appointed) (stock code: 1076), Golden Eagle Retail Group
Limited (stock code: 3308), PacMOS Technologies
Holdings Limited (stock code: 1010), Paliburg Holdings
Limited (stock code: 617), Regal Hotels International
Holdings Limited (stock code: 78), TPV Technology
Limited (stock code: 903) and Zhuguang Holdings Group
Company Limited (Stock Code: 1176) (appointed on 5
June 2012), all of these companies are listed on the
Stock Exchange. Mr. Wong has over 33 years of
experience in finance, accounting and management. Mr.
Wong was also an independent non-executive director of
each of Great Wall Motor Company Limited (stock code:
2333) (resigned on 5 June 2009), International
Entertainment Corporation (stock code: 1009) (resigned
on 23 September 2008) and FU JI Food and Catering
Services Holdings Limited (provisional liquidators
appointed) (stock code: 1175) (resigned on 24 June 2011),
all of these companies are listed on the Stock Exchange.
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Directors and Senior Management Profile

Mr. Tom Xie
Mr. Xie, aged 62, had years of management experience
with a Hong Kong listed company.

Mr. Xie is currently a candidate of a Master’'s degree in
Gemology with China University of Geosciences (Beijing).

Mr. Xie is also the Permanent Honorary Chairman of the
Confederacy of Hong Kong Shanwei Clansmen Limited.

Mr. Lo Wai Hung

Mr. Lo, age 52, obtained a bachelor degree in Commerce
from James Cook University of North Queensland,
Australia. Mr. Lo is an associate member of Institute of
Chartered Accountants in Australia and a fellow member
of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Mr. Lo was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of the Company on 19 May 2011. Mr. Lo is also
an independent non-executive director of Shangdong
Weigao Group Medical Polymer Company Limited (stock
code: 1066) and Talent Property Group Limited (stock
code: 760), both companies are listed on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, and an independent
director of China Merchants Property Development Co.
Ltd. (Shenzhen stock code: 24), a company listed on
Shenzhen Stock Exchange.

CHIEF OPERATION OFFICER

Mr. Zhou Jian

Mr. Zhou was appointed as the chief operating officer of
the Company on 15 September 2011.

Mr. Zhou, age 38, holds a master’s degree in Economics
from the Central University of Finance and Economics,
the People’s Republic of China.

Mr. Zhou was responsible for the global fuel oil trading
during his service in China National United Oil
Corporation as well as managing the fuel oil spot and
future markets of its branches in Asia and America. He
was also a senior manager of Titan Petrochemicals
Group Limited (stock code: 1192), a company listed on
the Stock Exchange, in the oil storage and distribution
divisions. Mr. Zhou has 10 years of extensive working
experience in energy field with broad business network,
and is familiar with global energy environment and
market.
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The directors present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2012.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company.
The activities of its principal subsidiaries and associate
are set out in note 35 and note 17 respectively to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2012 are set out in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on page 31.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements during the year in property, plant
and equipment of the Group are set out in note 16 to
the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the Company’s authorised, issued and fully
paid share capital are set out in note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVE OF THE COMPANY

There is no reserve available for distribution to
shareholders as at 31 March 2012.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to
the date of this report were:

Executive directors:
Mr. Wang Jianqing
Mr. Pan Junfeng

Independent non-executive directors:
Mr. Lo Wai Hung

Dr. Leung Hoi Ming

Mr. Wong Chi Keung

Mr. Tom Xie
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In accordance with Article (87) of the Company’s Bye-
laws, all remaining directors retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

None of the directors who are proposed for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract with the Company which is not determinable
within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.

The Company has received from each of its independent
non-executive directors an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of securities (the “Listing Rules”)
and considers all the independent non-executive directors
to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
CONVERTIBLE BONDS

As at 31 March 2012, the directors and chief executive
of the Company had the following interests and short
positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company or any associated corporation (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFQ”) which (a) are required to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which he is taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of SFO); or (b)
are required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein; or (c) are
required, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

EEXE

REARBRZARMAUEEGNG  MBEHKTE
ERREERRBEAGLKRESR  EFE
BEMARBEEE -

BREERRBFASLBEET CESME
EARRRAIN - FRAFLBRECEIERE
BRONTTARIEZ R B -

ARPERBEEFLEMAR NI LETARA)E313
RUEESBIIFATESTURBERRBLIEZ
FEBERE URABMBEBLINTEFTTR
BY AL -

ESRIRTBRAERKRG  EBRORA
BREFER

REE——F=A=+—H XRFRZEEFKE
ZOTBRAEBRARBHEMBEEE(RAE
7R HRE GO ([3E 75 S SR 16 1 1) 56 XV & P B
FTZREBE)ZBEN  HEROREEES  #HE
@ZBRIEFEFMHEHRIFEXVIEETRFE8D &
MEARRIRBRMAcERRAR(BERSF
RIBRE 7R P E GG Ll R B AR ERE
BzHERMRR) HOARBEEFRRPEK
{5 S535216% 2 #3 7€ R0 % I 7% 16k P At 2 E A
MZBERMKE HOAREBLTARNESRE
TRFXGZFEETHNMERNRR R
BEMRBWMT -
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Directors’ Report

EZEWEE

Capacity/Nature of

Number of Shares held
PRz i 88

Percentage of

Name of Directors interest Long position Short position total holding
EEns 54 HEENE Ba ne FRESH
(Note)
(Bt &%)
Wang Jianging Interest in controlled 636,504,351 — 62.43%
corporation
TEBE RELEER
Pan Junfeng Interest in controlled 636,504,351 — 62.43%

corporation

&R I R RE s

Note: Frontier Global Group Limited is wholly owned by Touch Billion
Limited. Touch Billion Limited is held as to 75% by Champion
Golden Limited, in which (i) Mr. Wang Jianging has 50% of the
voting right; and (ii) Mr. Pan Junfeng has 25% of the voting right.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2012, none of
the directors, chief executives of the Company had any
interests and short positions in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO) which (a) are required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 & 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which he is taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of SFO); or (b) are required,
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein; or (c) are required, pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Companies to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

As at 31 March 2012, none of the directors of the
Company had any interests in respect of options to
subscribe for the shares of the Company under the
Company’s share option scheme approved and adopted
on 23 August 2002.
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ARRANGEMENT TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than as disclosed under the heading “Directors’
rights to acquire shares”, none of the directors, their
spouses or children under the age of 18 had any right to
subscribe for shares of the Company, or had exercised
any such right during the year, and at no time during the
year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party
to any arrangements to enable the directors of the
Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other
body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Other than as set out in note 32 to the consolidated
financial statements and as disclosed under the heading
“Related party transactions”, no contracts of significance,
to which the Company or its subsidiaries was a party
and in which a director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

Significant related party transactions entered into by the
Group during the year are disclosed in note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES
OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER
PERSONS

As at 31 March 2012, so far as was known to any
director or chief executive of the Company, the following
persons (other than a director or the chief executive of
the Company) who had an interest or short position in
the shares and underlying shares of the Company which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,
or, who is, directly or indirectly, interested in ten per
cent. or more of the nominal value of any class of share
capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at
general meetings of any other member of the Group.

Directors’ Report

ESERES
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Number of Shares held

PR ¥ B 3 8L B
Capacity/Nature of Percentage
Name of Shareholder interest Long position Short position holding
% 3R & 18 St EENE 501 Re FRESE
Frontier Global Group Beneficial interest 636,504,351 — 62.43%
Limited (Note 1)
EBRRIEEBRAFT EnfEn (Mt E1)
Touch Billion Limited Interest in controlled 636,504,351 — 62.43%
corporation (Note 1)
REEEER (B 5E1)
Champion Golden Interest in controlled 636,504,351 — 62.43%
Limited corporation (Note 1)
K B (Hft7E1)
Cheng Xu Family interest 636,504,351 = 62.43%
(Note 1)
TEETS e (B 5E1)
Jinlong International Interest in controlled 636,504,351 — 62.43%
Holdings Limited corporation (Note 2)
CREBRZERERAR RIEEE#EZR (fF3E2)
ADM Galleus Fund | Interest in controlled 636,504,351 — 62.43%
Limited corporation (Note 2)
AR E R (fF5E2)
ADM Investment Interest in controlled 636,504,351 — 62.43%
Management Limited corporation (Note 2)
AR E R (fF3E2)

Note 1:  Frontier Global Group Limited is wholly owned by Touch — MizE1: Jc$2RIREEASGMR A RIHTouch Bilion Limited %
Billion Limited. Touch Billion Limited is held as to 75% by & ¥ & - Touch Bilion Limited Z75% # 25 M
Champion Golden Limited, in which (i) Mr. Wang Jianging has Champion Golden Limited#8 @ ()T &)F%
50% of the voting right; and (i) Mr. Pan Junfeng has 25% of EHEAS0% FRME R (i) BB IE X EFEB%RIA
the voting right. o

Note 2:  Pursuant to the disclosure of interests forms filed, Jinlong  FizE2: MBI ZEZEERSE  «EBBRERER
International Holdings Limited is held as to 50%, 29% and A ATy Bl B ADM Galleus Fund | Limited -
21% by ADM Galleus Fund | Limited, Permal ADM Asia Debt Permal ADM Asia Debt Fund Limited % ADM
Fund Limited and ADM Galleus Fund Il Limited respectively, Galleus Fund I Limited % Bl # & £50% * 29% &

21% # - MATAZE A7 B HADM  Investment

Management Limited{E R EFIB 2 EHA ©

all of these companies are in turn wholly owned by ADM
Investment Management Limited in the capacity as investment

manager.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2012, the
directors and chief executive of the Company are not
aware of any other persons (other than a director or chief
executive of the Company) who had an interest or short
position in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO or, who is, directly or indirectly,
interested in ten per cent. or more of the nominal value
of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all
circumstances at general meetings of any other members
of the Group.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
listed securities during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of sales and purchases for the year
attributable to the Group’s major customers and suppliers
are as follows:

EEXE

BREXHREESN - R=B——"F=A=+—8"
RARBEEREBZTHRABMRA - BT M
EMAL(FBREARRESTHEIZTHRAL)
RARB zBNRABEROFEAREZ SR
HERPIEXVEBE2R F3D 2 R ERAMAR
ARBEAAR RERXEERENA
EFRAERATRASETAEMKE AR ZK
RAEERERIR 2R ZAE 058 5 B A10%
HALEE -

BE - HEIREAAF LHES

FAARFBEEEAMBRALEREE - W
EXBEAARRAREMLETES °

TEEFRMER
REEEBE SR PG E RS R R
BEZESLMT

Sales SHEHE %
— The largest customer — mARP 49
— Five largest customers aggregated — AREFP A 94
Purchases HEE %
— The largest supplier — BAHER 49
— Five largest suppliers aggregated — ARAME®EET 84

None of the directors, their associate or any shareholders
(which to the knowledge of the directors own more than
5% of the Company’s share capital) had an interest in
the Group’s five largest suppliers or customers during
the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on pro-
rata basis to existing shareholders.

BEE REZHMEBEATIXREZAAEER
NAERAE%IA £ ZEAERER  REARELER
SERAHEFAE,PHHEATMER

BEABERE
ARTZATNMUKEREAPEEBBEA
AARLPIARERRIBLSR EHRH 2 E L
BEMAE -

Ngai Lik Industrial Holdings Limited Annual Report 2012
BRAOTESEBEERAR 2012461

27



28

TH CODE FOR SECURITIES

. TIONS BY DIRECTORS
~The Corﬁpany has adopted the Model Code as its own

code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
transactions (the “Code”). Having made specific enquiry
of all directors of the Company, the directors of the
Company have complied with the required standard as
set out in the Code throughout the year ended 31 March
2012.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors, the
Company has maintained a sufficient public float of not
less than 25% of the Company’s issued shares as
required under the Listing Rules throughout the year
ended 31 March 2012.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general
meeting to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

WANG JIANQING
CHAIRMAN
Hong Kong, 29 June 2012
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Independent Auditor's Report

Deloitte.
=)

TO THE MEMBERS OF
NGAI LIK INDUSTRIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Ngai Lik Industrial Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
set out on pages 31 to 90, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
March 2012, and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and
to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted our
audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

BYZHBEREE

BBENIEKERRATZ
2ERE
(RERZEZMALZEFRIA])

AITEZREBSZHENENZARNIEEE
BERAB(EARDEEMBARIATHRBEIE
SEDZHERBHRER  UEEEVHERRE
BER-_F——F=—A=t—BZHEEMHKIRR
BREABEZBLFEZHEEEZEARARE
RAaRDEPBRRIEERSRER URE
ZETHRMEREMBBEEEN -

ESNGRNBRRAREZER

BERREFARAREEAGMAGRMHZ
EREVBRELEANETBRARGH 2 WEHRTE
MELEEMAFIREZSEAMBHRE
AREEHESVAZABAREE  BERN
REFAVBRRE T FEBANKEFHERM
EHZERNERRM

7% LAy
AOIZEERBRBEATZERHRAYBHEER
FEER BATZERERRAREQRZE
FOOMK R BMTUERA—EEB M®KE A
TREMEIMBEN - ATATHRABREZAR
BEREMA LA EERABRHREIEMEL -
ATEREBEEESAMAERMcELERNE
APETTEZ - ZFEAREATETERRE -
WHREERTER  UABREEASMBERE
EETEFAEEMERBRRAL -
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Independent Auditor’'s Report
BYZEMKES

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group
as at 31 March 2012, and of its profit and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

29 June 2012
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

e EWARRK

For the year ended 31 March 2012

e e — = e B S B IETE S
2012 2011
—E—-%f e e
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B = F#ET FAET
Gross amounts of oil and gas AHERARBEE
sales contracts B H R 1,897,729 =
Gross amounts of oil and gas AR RAREE
purchase contracts BB (1,888,794) —
Related costs of oil sales and AHEEALEBEKAR
purchase contracts (9,234) —
Consultancy service fee income, & :AREEU A -
net of expense B F X 3,257 =
Net income from oil and gas BHRERARERN
contracts Z W A FEEE 2,958 L
Revenue (EMS business) I z5 (EMS % 7%) 100,861 675,518
Cost of sales (EMS business) & B AR (EMS ¥ 75) (99,536) (682,074)
Gross profit (loss) from EMS EMS¥5 2 EF (EFE)
business 1,325 (6,556)
Other income HAth g A 7 535 2,351
Gain on deconsolidation of BLIEEREFTA
subsidiaries NI &S 8 152,797 —
Other operating expenses Hfth 482 5 2 (37) (1,767)
Selling and distribution expenses  $H% & 7 4 B
(EMS business) (EMSZ7%) (421) (8,023)
Administrative expenses THRAX (30,551) (85,621)
Finance costs Bl & B A 9 (1,189) =
Impairment loss on investment & § R —E & R T
in an associate ZREEE (38) —
Impairment loss on property, ) % R 5= K 5%
plant and equipment ZREEE - (4,523)
Profit (loss) before taxation B % A 4 ) (B 18) 125,379 (104,139)
Taxation charge MIE X 10 (277) (76)
Profit (loss) for the year REE =M (BHE) 11 125,102 (104,215)
Other comprehensive income REEFEHMEBEILA
for the year
Exchange differences arising HBEmMEEZ
on translation ME W= 214 -
Total comprehensive income AEZ2ERKA
(expense) for the year (Hx)#%E 125,316 (104,215)
Earnings (loss) per share FRRAF (E18) 15
— basic — ER HK$0.16 & T (HK$0.137% 1)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

B BRI R

At 31 March 2012
i e — SR e e =

2012 2011
—g—C-F —T——F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B = Fi#&IT FET
Non-current Assets ERHEE
Property, plant and equipment Y BB R 16 10 503
Interest in an associate N—EBERAR 2 ER 17 - 38
10 541
Current Assets mEEE
Inventories FE 18 - 9,186
Receivables arising from oil and ARRkRAREE
gas sales contracts A#)Z EIBRIA 19 222 832 =
Trade and other receivables and B 5 K H b e R
prepayments R FE B 20 - 27,293
Tax recoverable A 4R (B 75 18 - 45
Pledged bank deposits BEHEMIEITHER 21 - 686
Bank balances and cash WITHGEAE S 21 113,343 8,857
336,175 46,067
Current Liabilities mEBEE
Trade and other payables and B 5 K H AR
accruals R EFER 22 5,417 158,211
Payables arising from oil and gas ABEAKAREE
purchase contracts B H) 2 BN FRE 23 96,678 =
Bills payable & R 1% 24 122,285 —
Amount due to a substantial R ART]—%
shareholder of the Company FERREZFHA 25 7,750 =
Amounts due to related companies F& 1< B 38 A 5] 7% 8 25 11,943 2,839
Amount due to an associate JEN—MEEE A AFRIE 25 38 38
Tax payable FEAS B IR 353 121
Obligations under finance leases & 49 R
— due within one year — —F AN EH 26 - 32
Provision i 27 - 17,844
244,464 179,085
Net Current Assets (Liabilities) HRENZE(BE)EE 91,711 (133,018)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

wE BN RR

At 31 March 2012
R S S

2012 2011
—g—-F o =
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B & THERT FAT
Total Assets less Current HEERRHEE
Liabilities 91,721 (132,477)
Non-current Liability EREEE
Obligations under finance leases b & AH A A
— due after one year — —F1ERH 26 - 3
Net Assets (Liabilities) EEBR)ZFE 91,721 (132,480)
Capital and Reserves BAR R E
Share capital fi% 7 29 101,959 79,302
Reserves & & (10,238) (211,782)
Total Equity (Deficits) B (BS54l @A 91,721 (132,480)
The consolidated financial statements on pages 31 to 90 F31HE EFE 2R E M BHMERENR T —=
were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of F XA+ L HAE SR EERIT I
Directors on 29 June 2012 and are signed on its behalf M TIEERKREE
by:
WANG JIANQING PAN JUNFENG
TEE s g
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EZE EZE
Ngai Lik Industrial Holdings Limited Annual Report 2012
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

mE R

=< 44

mom

Gl

For the year ended 31 March 2012
HE_ZT—-—F=A=+—HLtFE

Total
Share Share Other Translation Accumulated equity
capital premium reserve reserve losses (deficits)
HEx
Hity (B5 4)
BE BHRE & BREMEE RitksE st
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FHET FET FET FHET FHET
(Note)
(B 5%)
At 1 April 2010 R-ZZ—ZTFWMA—AH 79,302 94,972 71,372 = (273,911) (28,265)
Loss and total comprehensive 7N 518 K&
expense for the year 2HEMAYERE — — — — (104,215)  (104,215)
At 31 March 2011 R=T——%F
=HA=+—H 79,302 94,972 71,372 — (378,126)  (132,480)
Profit for the year N — — — — 125,102 125,102
Other comprehensive income A4 & H b 2 & W A
for the year — — — 214 — 214
Total comprehensive income AEE2EBALE
for the year — — — 214 125,102 125,316
Proceeds from shares issued AT 15 FT1S 5118 22,657 77,263 — - - 99,920
Transaction costs attributable %77 % {5 & 15 32 5 X AR
to issue of shares — (1,085) — — — (1,035)
At 31 March 2012 WZE——F
=A=+—H 101,959 171,200 71,372 214 (253,024) 91,721
Note: The other reserve represented the credit arising from the capital Mick: EtREEERBEFEERAERMELE ZERSE

reduction where the par value of each existing share was

reduced from HK$0.10 to HK$0.01

by the cancellation of

HK$0.09 of the paid-up capital on each existing share in prior

years.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

lﬂ§/\£%f$zﬁﬁla %E

For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE-_T——=-"A=+—HILFE

2012 2011
—g—C-F o =
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B = Fi#&IT FAT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES HEER
Profit (loss) before taxation B B A A (518 ) 125,379 (104,139)
Adjustments for: HTIEEEHFE:
Depreciation of property, L E Y
plant and equipment e 1 888
Impairment loss on property, Y - BB RE
plant and equipment Z R EEE - 4,523
Impairment loss on trade B 5 K H i & U BR 51
and other receivables ZREEE 10,736 12,571
Impairment loss on interest R RN
in an associate 2O BB EE 38 =
Interest income A B WA (5) 48)
Interest expense FMERAZ 1,189 3
Gain on deconsolidation of WIEEREFTA
subsidiaries NN g (152,797) —
Gain on disposal of property, LEME  BE
plant and equipment K&z W= (23) (374)
Reversal of provision on b2 @ FERE
inventories - (8,253)
Operating cash flows before LiEE S EHAE
movements in working capital CRERERE (15,482) (89,832)
Decrease in inventories FER > 9,186 89,243
Decrease in trade and other B 5 I H A & W R 5K
receivables and prepayments B A R A 12,617 5,178
Increase in receivables arising BRRRAREE
from oil and gas sales contracts BHFTEE
2 FE U AR SRR AN (222,832) -
Decrease in trade and other B 5 Rk H b JE - BR 5K
payables and accruals Y EET 8 BR (13,184) (16,404)
Increase in payables arising from  AHEAKAREE
oil and gas purchase contracts BRI FTEE
2 FE A BR SR AE AN 96,678 -
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING #EEEBREZ
ACTIVITIES HE&FE (133,017) (11,815)
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BRATXEEERAA 2012F #




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2012
HE_T——F=A=+—HILFE

2012 2011
—F—=-% —F——%F
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
B 5E FHET FA T
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BEEH
Withdrawal (placement) of RE(TFA) B3
pledged bank deposits IRITER 686 (686)
Proceeds from disposal of HEME  KE
property, plant and equipment N B 2 Sk IE 519 2,931
Interest received B Y F B 5 48
Net cash outflow upon RIEERE J)\Fﬁ NG
deconsolidation of subsidiaries ZBEERHFE 8 (531) =
Purchase of property, plant BEVWE BERZHE
and equipment (11) (8,575)
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) BEEHRE
INVESTING ACTIVITIES () R&FE 668 (1,282)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEEH
Fund raised from discounted bills i &5 8 R BL IR = 4%
with recourse FrEsrES® 169,047 =
Proceeds from issue of shares, BITR 0 PT1S K IE
net of transaction costs R R 5 KA 98,885 —
Advance from related companies ERE NI 11,943 2,839
Advance from a shareholder —BRRZBR 7,750 =
Settlement of discounted bills BT RLIR R R (45,425) —
Repayment to a related company  {Ei€ —[E &= A a]
Z B IE (2,839) —
Interest paid EXNEESS (2,526) —
Repayments of obligations under & & gt & fH 49 & &
finance leases ZER - (32)
NET CASH FROM FINANCING MEETHME
ACTIVITIES H&Z8E 236,835 2,807
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN ReRHAE£FHEIER
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS z¥m(igd)FE%8E 104,486 (10,290)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RE#MZIRE
AT THE BEGINNING EBReFEER
OF THE YEAR 8,857 19,147
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS MWERZHRER
AT THE END OF THE YEAR, ReFEEBARKR:
represented by bank balances WITHEFERRE S
and cash 113,343 8,857
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GENERAL

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an
exempted company with limited liability and its
shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The holding
company of the Company is Frontier Global Group
Limited. Frontier Global Group Limited is a limited
liability company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands (“BVI”) and solely controlled by Touch Billion
Limited that is a limited company incorporated in
BVI. The addresses of the registered office and
principal place of business of the Company are
disclosed in the corporate information included in
the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars, which is also the functional
currency of the Company.

The Group is principally engaged in the design and
sale of electronic and electrical products. In the
current year, the Group entered into a number of
oil and gas sales and purchase contracts and
related consultancy service contracts with a number
of counterparties. Please refer to note 3 for the
accounting policies and notes 19, 23 and 24
relating to assets and liabilities arising from these
oil and gas contracts.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(‘HKFRSS)

In the current year, the Group has applied the
following new and revised HKFRSs issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(the “HKICPA”).

HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs
issued in 2010
HKAS 24 (Revised) Related Party Disclosures

HK(FRIC) — Int 14
(Amendment)

Prepayments of a
Minimum Funding
Requirement

Extinguishing Financial
Liabilities with Equity
Instruments

HK(IFRIC) — Int 19

=l R

For the year ended 31 March 2012

e ed— e B - — (5] PR
—-RER
AART—HRBEREFMEKL ZER
RERRAR EROREBBERZFTAE
RAR(HRAT) EM o KRR ZIZERA
AALEBRIRIKEBEER AR o SLEIRIK
SEERAB N —HMREBRE XS ([H
BEZHEDFMAXLZEREEAT
WHREREBEZESEMA L 2BR
& £ 2 Touch Billion Limited 2 # #5 &| ©
ARARIZAMBEERETEEEME 2
A RFRZARERANIEE -

REMBRRIIABITZES - B TTI
REARBZINEER -

AEBTERERAREEETRESRE
meRAFE  AEBESZEFHETL
ZIEABRRAIEEREEAHNUR
HEAZAREELD - Z2HNE3EHE
SR LA N BT 5519 2324 R £ A
MR RKARABHNTEEZEEREE -

ERFIREBTERBMBEREER
(BEMBHRELER )

RAFE AEBEERATNIHEESS
fing((EE MRS RM 2T R
RIEFIERHBEREER -

ERVBHREER H_ZE-—Z=FHEM
CCHEN, 2 & B IR
HER 2 BHE
BB GFER BiEALHE
F245% (K18 ET)
AR EBVBERE ZEE2FTR
ZEZEE) — 2 SERNE
T 1458 (18 5T )
EEBEBRFERE NUEZTASBE
ZREZEE THARE
— REFE195%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R R M AT

For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE_ T —F=HA=Z=+—BHLEFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

The application of the new and revised HKFRSs in
the current year has had no material impact on the
Group’s financial performance and positions for the
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures
set out in these consolidated financial statements.

The Group has not early applied the following new
and revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are

not yet effective.

2.

ERAFITREBTEEMBEREER
(EERBREEN)(E)

RARFEREEBHAREEFTEAMBER
SEAHAEENRAFERBEFEZ
B RE B HAR MG 2
BREENIEEBRNEANTE -

AEEILRIEFEM TS EHBMEHEK
EMZHFT REETETRMBHREER -

Amendment to Annual Improvement to HKFRS BEAUBHREE H_TETNFE-T—
HKFRSs 2009 — 20112 Bl Z (&3] —FRBUBHRSE
AEBI| 7 F 2 ke
Amendments to Disclosures — Transfer of EBUBHREE BE — BESREE
HKFRS 7 Financial Assets' BIZE75% 218 5]
Amendments to Disclosures — Offsetting BERMBHREE BE — HESREE
HKFRS 7 Financial Assets and BIZE7R 2185 RemAaR&?

Amendments to

Financial Liabilities®
Mandatory Effective Date of

FEEMBHREE BAMBHRELELFE

HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 9 and Transition AIZE95% k& 5% 2 58 il &= 2 B HA
HKFRS 7 Disclosures® 7S B S RS I 38 1 o 55 e
BIZE75% 218 5]
Amendments to Deferred Tax: Recovery of BEXRGFER  EERIEA:
HKAS 12 Underlying Assets* F1258 2 185]  WEEEEE
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments® BB HRE <«mIAS
#E Bl S5 O5%
HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial BEEVBHRE HSEVBE@RKR
Statements? AE B 851055
HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements? BERMBHRE WAL HE
AEBI| 251158
HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests BEEYHHRE REMEEEZR
in Other Entities? AE BI| 51255 2
HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement? BEAMBHRE ATFEFE?
A= BI| 51355%
Amendments to Presentation of Iltems of Other BEAGHERE HmEmK AEER
HKAS 1 Comprehensive Income® 155 2 &3] 2 25°
HKAS 19 (as Employee Benefits? BEBGFER  EERAP
revised in 2011) F1HR (=T —
—FELIEET)
HKAS 27 (as Separate Financial Statements? BEGHEL BUBBHRR
revised in 2011) FTHR(ZFE—
—FLIEE])
HKAS 28 (as Investments in Associates and BERGFELN REEQARREE
revised in 2011) Joint Ventures? FRR(ZE— DEIRE?
—FLIEE])
Amendments to Offsetting Financial Assets and BEXGFER HESREER
HKAS 32 Financial Liabilities® EIR/ 2B eRARS
HK(IFRIC) — Int 20 Stripping Costs in the AR BBV HWREBREERR
Production Phase of a WMEREZLZE Z F) B R A2

Surface Mine?
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

i Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July

2011

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2013

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2015

o Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2012

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2012

6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2014

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of these new and revised standards,
amendments or interpretations will have no material
impact on the results and the financial position of
the Group.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and by
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis. Historical
cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consolidation given in exchange for goods.

The significant accounting policies are set out
below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and
entities controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries).
Control is achieved where the Company has the
power to govern the financial and operating policies
of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its
activities.

2.

GAEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
BHE_T——_F=A=+—HILFEE

ERFITREBTEEMBEREER
(EERBREER)(H)

1 R-E——FtA-HAERRABZFED

A

2 R-ZE—=F—-A- PR ERRABZFEDR

8 R-ZE-—RF—HA-BREARBZFEHH

¢ R-F-——F— A BAHERHARZFEHMN
)

° R-E——FtA-HRERRBZFERR
)

e R-Z—WE—A—BXERFIKRZFEH
A R

ARRESAY  ERESHAIILERE
IR ERI AR RER T HARH
ZRENVBMRRBRERNEAZE -

FTEEHBR
BAMBRRERESEGHAARE
G BB BRELNEL I &
AUMBREDET AR AR SMARD
ABHETRABEERTEOIRE 2
BREEEH -

GARMEBRERBE SR RAEEREY -
JE 52 A — 1A 2 2 50 3t 4 TR0 9 A4
B2 AT -

T EHRERIIMT -

GAE%

AT MR MARA R RAA AR
HEEEHBATZ MEHRE - AR
NARAE - BERZHBREERE
DB # T R REFIE - BB A4
1 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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B %% R M

For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE_ T —F=HA=Z=+—BHLEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income from the
effective date of acquisition and up to the effective
date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies in line with those used by other
members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and
expenses are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Investment in an associate

An associate is an entity over which the investor has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary
nor an interest in a joint venture. Significant influence
is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee but is not
control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates
are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, investments in associates
are initially recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter
to recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss
and other comprehensive income of the associates.
When the Group’s share of losses of an associate
equals or exceeds its interest in that associate
(which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net investment
in the associate), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional
losses are recognised only to the extent that the
Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations
or made payments on behalf of that associate.

When a group entity transacts with its associate,
profits and losses resulting from the transactions
with the associate are recognised in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements only to the extent
of interests in the associate that are not related to
the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and represents
amounts received and receivable for goods sold
and services provided in the normal course of
business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.
The Group assesses its revenue arrangements
against specific criteria in order to determine if it is
acting as principal or agent. The Group has
concluded that it is acting as a principal in all of its
revenue arrangements for EMS business.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised
when all the following conditions are satisfied:

° the Group has transferred to the buyer the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of
the goods;

o the Group retains neither continuing
managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership nor effective
control over the goods sold;

° the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably;

° it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the transaction will flow to
the Group; and

° the costs incurred or to be incurred in
respect of the transaction can be measured
reliably.

Revenue from sales of goods are recognised when
goods are delivered and title has passed.

Contracts to buy or sell oil or gas that can be
settled not in cash or another financial instrument
or by exchanging financial instruments, are treated
as if they were financial instruments classified at
fair value through profit or loss except where the
contracts are entered into for the purpose of the
receipt or delivery of oil or gas in accordance with
the Group’s expected purchase, sale or usage
requirements.

3.

GAEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
BHE_T——_F=A=+—HILFEE
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KEHERTEN
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R R M AT

For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE_ T —F=HA=Z=+—BHLEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

There are various ways in which a contract to buy
or sell oil or gas can be settled net in cash or
another financial instrument or by exchanging
financial instruments. These include:

(@ when the terms of the contract permit either
party to settle it net in cash or another
financial instrument or by exchanging financial
instruments;

(b)  when the ability to settle net in cash or
another financial instrument, or by exchanging
practice of settling similar contracts net in
cash or another financial instrument or by
exchanging financial instruments (whether with
the counterparty, by entering into offsetting
contracts or by selling the contract before its
exercise or lapse);

()  when, for similar contracts, the entity has a
practice of taking delivery of the underlying
and selling it within a short period after
delivery for the purpose of generating a profit
from short-term fluctuations in price or
dealer’s margin; and

(d) when the non-financial item that is the subject
of the contract is readily convertible to cash.

Income for provision of after-sale services is
recognised when the services are rendered.

Consultancy service fee income or expense is
recognised when the services are rendered or
received.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised
when it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the amount of income can
be measured reliably. Interest income from a
financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the
cost of items of property, plant and equipment,
other than leasehold improvements, on a reducing
balance basis. The depreciation method is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect
of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

Leasehold improvements are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the remaining term of the
leases or over their estimated useful lives,
whichever is shorter, and after taking into account
their estimated residual values, using the straight-
line method.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated
over their expected useful lives on the same basis
as owned assets. However, when there is no
reasonable certainty that ownership will be obtained
by the end of the lease term, assets are
depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and
their useful lives.

3.

GAEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
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For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE_ T —F=HA=Z=+—BHLEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset is recognised in profit
or loss.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever
the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All
other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as
assets of the Group at their fair value at the
inception of the lease or, if lower, at the present
value of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding liability to the lessor is included in
the consolidated statement of financial position as
a finance lease obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance
expenses and reduction of the lease obligation so
as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability. Finance expenses
are recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless
they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in
which case they are capitalised in accordance with
the Group’s policy on borrowing costs (see the
accounting policy below).

Operating lease payments are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term, except where another systematic basis is
more representative of the time pattern in which
economic benefits from the leased asset are
consumed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasing (Continued)

The Group as lessee (Continuead)

In the event that lease incentives are received to
enter into operating leases, such incentives are
recognised as a liability. The aggregate benefit of
incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental
expense on a straight-line basis, except where
another systematic basis is more representative of
the time pattern in which economic benefits from
the leased asset are consumed.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each
individual group entity, transactions in currencies
other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective
functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates)
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of
the transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of
monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they arise, except for exchange
differences arising on a monetary item that forms
part of the Company’s net investment in a foreign
operation, in which case, such exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity and will be
reclassified from equity to profit or loss on disposal
of the foreign operation.

3.
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For the year ended 31 March 2012
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For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE_ T —F=HA=Z=+—BHLEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group’s foreign operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong
dollars) at the rate of exchanges prevailing at the
end of the reporting period, and their income and
expenses are translated at the average exchange
rates for the year. Exchange differences arising, if
any, are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity.

Retirement benefit costs

Payment to the Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”)
Scheme is charged as expenses when employees
have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.

In addition, the Group’s contributions to a local
municipal government retirement scheme in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) are
expensed when employees have rendered service
entiting them to the contributions while the local
municipal government in the PRC undertakes to
assume the retirement benefit obligations of all
existing and future retirees of the qualified staff in
the PRC.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from the profit as
reported in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income because it excludes items
of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and it further excludes items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the consolidated financial statements
and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination)
of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting
profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries and an associate, except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments and interests are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.
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For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE_ T —F=HA=Z=+—BHLEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of the reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset is
realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and
assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets
and liabilities. Current and deferred tax are
recognised in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is calculated using the first-in,
first-out method.

Impairment losses on tangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible assets
to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss, if any. If the
recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be
less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible assets (Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but
so that the increased carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal
of an impairment loss is recognised as income
immediately.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position when a group entity becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities are added to
or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are loans and
receivables. The classification depends on the
nature and purpose of the financial assets and is
determined at the time of initial recognition.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset
and of allocating interest income over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective
interest basis for debt instruments.
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For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE_ T —F=HA=Z=+—BHLEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continuea)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. Subsequent to
initial recognition, loans and receivables (including
trade and other receivables, receivables arising
from oil and gas sales contracts, pledged bank
deposits and bank balances and cash) are carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any identified impairment losses (see
accounting policy on impairment of financial assets
below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of
impairment at the end of the reporting period.
Financial assets are impaired where there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows
of the financial assets have been affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

° breach of contract, such as default or
delinguency in interest or principal payments;
or

it becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as
receivables arising from oil and gas sales contracts
entered into by the Group, they are assessed for
impairment individually.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
when there is objective evidence that the asset is
impaired, and is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is
reduced by the impairment loss directly for all
financial assets with the exception of receivables
arising from oil and gas sales contracts, where the
carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount
of the allowance account are recognised in profit or
loss. When a receivable arising from an oil and gas
sales contract is considered uncollectible, it is
written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited to profit or loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount
of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed
does not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by
a group entity are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements entered
into and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs
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For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE_ T —F=HA=+—BHLEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continuea)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability
and of allocating interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective
interest basis.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (including trade and other
payables and accruals, payables arising from oil
and gas purchase contracts, bills payable and
amounts due to a substantial shareholder of the
Company, related companies and an associate) are
measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the assets expire or, the
financial assets are transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
ownership of the financial assets.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had
been recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or
loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Derecognition (Continued)

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present obligation as a result of a past event, and
it is probable that the Group will be required to
settle that obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking
into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding
the obligation. Where a provision is measured using
the cash flows estimated to settle the present
obligation, its carrying amount is the present value
of those cash flows (where the effect of time value
of money is material).

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that
entities in the Group will be able to continue as a
going concern while maximising the return to
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt
and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of
debts, which include bills payable, amounts due to
a substantial shareholder of the Company and
related companies disclosed in notes 24 and 25,
respectively, cash and cash equivalents and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising
issued share capital, share premium, reserves and
accumulated losses.
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For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE_ T —F=HA=+—BHLEFE

4. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 4, BEXRREE(E)
The directors of the Company review the capital RARIEETFEHRITEARERE - tEAIL
structure periodically. As a part of this review, the B Z—HD BEEFEREAKAREHE
directors consider the cost of capital and the risks BAFMS 2 RAR - BIBEES 2 2%
associates with each class of capital. Based on SEKBBBETHROIBITHEL -
recommendations of the directors, the Group will T E R E AR o
balance its overall capital structure through new
share issue or the issue of new debts.
5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 5, &®MIA
(@)  Categories of financial instruments @ SMIADE
2012 2011
—F—--F —E——%F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET T T
Financial assets ERMEE
Loans and receivables (including & 3k K& & B BR 3%
cash and cash equivalents) (BiEHES X
ReEMEIER) 336,175 36,784
Financial liabilities cHERE
Amortised cost s IR 244,111 161,088

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
The Group’s major financial instruments
include receivables arising from oil and gas
sales contracts, trade and other receivables
and prepayments, pledged bank deposits,
bank balances and cash, trade and other
payables and accruals, payables arising from
oil and gas purchase contracts, bills payable,
and amounts due to a substantial shareholder
of the Company, related companies and an
associate. Details of the financial instruments
are disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments
include market risk (currency risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk. The policies on how to
mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures
are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GAEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012

RE-T——F=A=+-BILEE
5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 5, ¢WIA(E)
(b)  Financial risk management objectives and policies b)) HEERREEAERBK(E)
(Continued)
Market risk 5 E g
Foreign currency risk management IER G ERE
Several subsidiaries of the Company have AABBEZENBARBERINLE T
entered into certain foreign currency INEEZZ 5 B AN & B T R AN E R

transactions, which expose the Group to
foreign currency risk.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign
currency denominated monetary assets and
monetary liabilities at the end of reporting
period are as follows:

& o
2N

RBERERE - REB AN
BEcEBKEERERABEZREE
LIl

Assets Liabilities
HE =F-
2012 2011 2012 2011
—F——-F —ZT——F Z¥F-—-F —T——F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET FHET FHT
United States dollars (‘USD”) 7T 211 2,939 - 6,741
Renminbi (“‘RMB”) AR 85,684 547 84,147 262
Hong Kong dollars BT 90,860 — 3,883 =
Macau Pataca (“MOP?”) SR PI T - 2 = -
As Hong Kong dollars is currently pegged to RRBITEETTHN  EEER
USD, management considers that exposure to HETEHE EREHRRE 75
exchange fluctuation in respect of USD is R o
limited.
Commodity price risk BmEREE
The Group is exposed to the risk of HRASREEERF R ERER L
fluctuations in prevailing market commodity AmkRARKBREEAH &

prices of oil and gas products as the Group
entered into oil and gas purchase and sale
contracts with its customers and suppliers.
The Group manages these commodity price
risks through entering into oil and gas
purchase and sales contracts within a short
period of time. Accordingly, the Group
minimises its exposure to such risk and is
subject to short term price fluctuations in the
prevailing market commodity prices in the
intervening periods between entering into the
oil and gas purchase and sales contracts.
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For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE_ T —F=HA=+—BHLEFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

0.

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Commodity price risk (Continued)

The Group does not have oil and gas
contracts remained at open position as at 31
March 2012.

Credit risk

The Group, through the Company’s two
wholly-owned subsidiaries, entered into a
number of contracts to purchase and sell oil
and gas. In general and as part of the
Group’s prudent measures, a short duration
is kept between each buy and sell
transaction. Such oil and gas contracts
entered into by two wholly-owned subsidiaries
of the Company involve nine suppliers and six
customers. Some of these contracts are
settled in cash on a gross basis. About 22%
of contracts to sell oil and gas that are
settled in cash on a gross basis are entered
into with one single customer that is a
company established in the PRC, which Mr.
Wang Jianging, the Chairman and an ultimate
shareholder of the Company, is a general
manager. In addition, some of these contracts
are settled in cash on a net basis. About
52% contracts to sell oil that are settled on a
net basis are entered into with one single
customer, that is an independent third party.

As part of the measures to mitigate the credit
concentration risk, each individual debtor has
been monitored closely and on an ongoing
basis. In addition, gross amounts of oil and
gas sales contracts are either settled by letter
of credit or bills issued by the customers’
banks with high credit-ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies and are
receivable with an average credit period
ranging from seven days to six months after
the bills of lading date of delivery.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk (Continuea)

As at 31 March 2012, receivables arising from
contracts to sell oil and gas that are settled
in cash on a gross basis amounted to
HK$222,832,000, of which HK$123,622,000
are discounted to banks with recourse. As at
31 March 2012, the Group has concentration
of credit risk with bill receivables from oil and
gas sales contracts issued from two (2011:
nil) banks. The credit risk on the bill
receivables is limited because the
counterparties are mainly banks with high
credit-rating or with good reputation. These
receivables are attributable to three customers
and are settled after the end of the reporting
period.

As at 31 March 2011, the Group had
concentration of credit risk as 99% of the
receivables were due from two customers in
EMS business that are entities not related to
the Group.

The credit risk on liquid funds is Ilimited
because the counterparties are banks with
high credit-ratings assigned by international
credit-rating agencies.

Liquidity risk

The following table details the Group’s
remaining contractual maturity for its non-
derivative financial liabilities. The tables have
been drawn up based on the undiscounted
cash flows of financial liabilities based on the
earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay. Such non-derivative financial
liabilities outstanding at the end of the
reporting period are considered as if
outstanding for the whole year. The table
includes both interest and principal cash
flows.

GAEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
BHE_T——_F=A=+—HILERE

5. TMIA(H)

(b)

BHEAREEERREE(E)

EERRE (&)

W2 =5 HiE 5 oo aireg-
HMEENRHEECEHERABRR
RREAVMEE 2 BEKRERE
222,832,000/ 7T * H 123,622,000
ST LABT AR B RS N MRITAAIR o
R-ZTE——F=A=+—H &K&EH
HHAMBCE——F: &)FE1T
BHEHABERAIBEESNZ
BREBREz2ESTFEERR - EBWE
BrEERRBRER  RAZRYFH
FELHAEEGEIRKERRIT
EEZRIT - ZERKERTIKRE
—RRPUWARMEMEREES -

RZEBE——F=A=+—H F&&
BZEERRES  &E9% L E
WERREWMABEMSEBEF Z
RIE MEFEREASEER -

RREFIREBRREEFRKE
ARBEEFRZIRT BWRDHE
T EERREBER -

RBEZmE
TERHAINAKERTESRARL
BRTANIBBER - ZFEMRIIE
BEAKERAIHERERZHF B
MEE<ERABZIMRATR
EMRE ZENBEMERKH
AEBZFNTECHABRRSE
MEREERAEE HRE2EF
BRAGZHERE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2012
HE_ZT—-—F=A=+—HLtFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

5. @ IE(E)

(b)  Financial risk management objectives and policies b HEEREEEERIEK(E)
(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) REEZERE(E)
Weighted
average 0-60 days Total Carrying
interest or repayable 61-180 181-365 undiscounted amount at
rate on demand days days cash flows 31 March
®R=A
hn#E 0-60H ) =+-—8
EHFE FERMWEE 61-1808 181-365H MEREMEE ZREE
% HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
% FHERT FET FET FET FHET
2012 —®——3
Non-interest bearing TR ZzemAaR
financial liabilities
Trade and other payables and B 5 & H AR K
accruals kEGER - 5,367 - 50 5,417 5,417
Payables arising from oil and ARk RARKE
gas purchase contracts AHFEXL
Z FEATBR TR - 96,678 - - 96,678 96,678
Amount due to a substantial R ARRT
shareholder of the Company EX T E - 7,750 - - 7,750 7,750
Amounts due to related JE A5 B A R FRIE
companies - 11,943 - - 11,943 11,943
Amount due to an associate FEAT — Rl Hgp
RAIRIE = 38 - - 38 38
Fixed-rate interest bearing REEBEHE
financial liabilities ZEMBR
Bills payable AN 3 3.87-5.10 38,179 85,443 - 123,622 122,285
159,955 85,443 50 245,448 244111
2011 —E——%
Non-interest bearing FitBZEeMAaR
financial liabilities
Trade and other payables and B 5 R A M RN RR
accruals K e E R - 41,287 116,924 - 158,211 158,211
Amounts due to related JE A5 B A R FRIA
companies — 2,839 - — 2,839 2,839
Amount due to an associate FE A — R Bt
RAERE — 38 — - 38 38
44,164 116,924 — 161,088 161,088
(c)  Fair values © 2¥HE
The fair values of financial assets and PREERSHABGECATERA
financial liabilities are determined in RZEBBEANERRERE SN

accordance with generally accepted pricing
models based on discounted cash flow
analysis.

The directors consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded at amortised costs in the
consolidated financial statements approximate
their fair values.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Reportable and operating segments are identified
on the basis of internal reports about components
of the Group that are regularly reviewed by the
chief operating decision maker (i.e. the Chairman
and chief executive officer) for the purpose of
allocating resources to segments and assessing
their performance.

The Group’s reportable and operating segments are
as follows:

EMS business — Design and sale of electronic
and electrical products.
Oil and gas — Entering into oil and gas

transactions sales and purchase
contracts and provision of
consultancy services in

relation to such contracts.

During the year ended 31 March 2011, the Group
was engaged in EMS business only.

During the year ended 31 March 2012, the Group
entered into a number of oil and gas sales and
purchase contracts and provision of consultancy
services in respect of oil industry, this becomes a
new reportable and operating segment in the
current year.

GEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012

BHE_T——_F=A=+—HILtFEE
PHEH
AERKELEDBRBELCHEEZERR
EAERRITBREZ)RSEERE D
BRAGEREAMERAEHN I AEEE
Bz NEP M ERERE A -

REBZAIRERKE T LW

EMS X7 - BARBEETR
BEEM °

BBRRAR — HALABRRAR

2% EEAKARIE

HEWZEEH

2B -

HE-F——£=A=+—RILEE &
(B FEMSE -

BHE_T——F=—A=t—HLEFE &K
SEFTYZEABEERAREESHIA
RRHEAROBITEZERARE - %%
BRRARNFEZHAUZRELEDE -
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=g

For the year ended 31 March 2012

BE_ T —F=ZHA=+—BHLEFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. DHBEH(E)
Segment results DEE

EMS Oil and gas
business transactions Consolidated

Voppid
EMSER X#ARXS e
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
FA T FAT FET
Segment revenue to external INEFEF 2 o B0 U =
customers 100,861 1,900,986 2,001,847
Less: Gross amount of oil B ABERAR
and gas purchase EBEANERE
contracts — (1,888,794) (1,888,794)
Less: Related costs of ol B AHEEAL
sales and purchase 18 78 Bk AR
contracts — (9,234) (9,234)
Net income from oil BHRERAREN
and gas contracts ZFWA 2,958
Revenue (EMS business) I 25 (EMS 2 73) 100,861
Segment results D EEE 904 1,769 2,673
Unallocated income KA EUKA 535
Unallocated expenses R Be 2 (30,588)
Gain on deconsolidation of & IF&RA AN E QA
subsidiaries 2= 152,797
Impairment loss on AR — S QA
investment in an associate ZRIEE 1B (38)
Profit before taxation B 75 B 4 A 125,379
Segment assets and liabilities PHMEERERE
No segment assets and liabilities are presented as HRTEZRBASETETHEBE I
the chief operating decision maker does not review BELRBGE WHEZYNWEBEENLA
them regularly. & o
Ngai Lik Industrial Holdings Limited Annual Report 2012
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6.

Geographical segments

The following table provides an analysis of the
Group’s segment revenue from oil and gas
transactions and revenue (EMS business) by
geographical market and the Group’s non-current
assets by geographical location of the assets,
irrespective of the origin of the goods delivered or
services rendered:

Segment revenue from
oil and gas
transactions

RKERHEXAR
3 55 &R W &

2012 2011
—ET—-F —T——F
HK$000  HK$'000
TFHET FHT

GEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012

BHE_T——_F=A=+—HILtFEE
P HER(E)
HE 5
TRE®AEBZOEMZE S 2K E
AR R RARRZ S5 8 = K& & (EMS
EBIRAEEREEFMEME D ZIER
BEEZON  MARARXNE@EFT
R RS 2 SRR b :

Revenue
(EMS business) Non-current assets
I 25 (EMS % 55) FREEE
2012 2011 2012 2011

—®--—% -T 4 - -FT %

HK$000  HK$'000  HK$’000 HK’000
FTHET T FHET FTAT

Singapore rns 586,826 — - — - —
Malaysia ERE R 539,536 — - — - —
The PRC, other than B (& AR IN
Hong Kong 344,180 — — 23,603 10 —
Korea [ 319,191 — = — = —
Thailand %= 111,253 — - _ - i
The Middle East G - — 70,680 12,877 - -
United States of America =& - — 13,154 266,987 - —
Netherlands fr 8 - — - 60,823 - —
Canada mER - — - 47,266 - —
Chile = A = = - 33,303 - =
Panama BEeS - — - 27,656 - -
Brazil B - — - 19,625 - —
France = - — - 15,366 - =
Hong Kong BB - — - 2,421 - 541
Others Hfb - — 17,027 165,591 - —
1,900,986 — 100,861 675,518 10 541
Information about major customers TEEFER

Revenue from three (2011: one) customers,
independent third parties, in the EMS business
amounted to approximately HK$99,565,000 (2011:
HK$266,976,000) in aggregate, which individually
represents more than 10 per cent of the segment
revenue from EMS business.

Segment revenue from three (2011: nil) customers,
including the PRC Entity (as defined in note 32), in
the oil and gas transactions amounted to
approximately HK$1,659,645,000 (2011: nil) in
aggregate, which individually represents more than
10 per cent of the segment revenue from oil and
gas transactions.

REEMSEB=RBUE=FTEF(=F
——F: —F) 2Kz & $£ 499,565,000
JT(=F — — 4 : 266,976,000/ 7T) * A {H
Bl BEEMSH 7 2 B U5 110% -

REABRRARRGZ =ZH(ZF——
FREFEETRERE(ER BHKE
32) 2 7 Zp Uz A& 2 %91,659,645,0007% JT
—E——&:F) LERFEEERE
AARR D7 EB U = 8110% o
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=g

For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE_ T —F=ZHA=+—BHLEFE

7. OTHER INCOME it A
2012 2011
—E——%F —T——fF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET T T
Gain on disposal of property, HEME  BEREE
plant and equipment Z W E 23 374
Interest income A 2B A 5 48
Sundry income HEIE WA 507 1,929
535 2,351
8. GAIN ON DECONSOLIDATION OF REGEFANBLAA RS
SUBSIDIARIES
Pursuant to a notice of liquidators’ appointment RIEHBHA-ZE——FNAZTNLAZE
dated 29 September 2011 (“Notice”), Messrs. Mak BAZEBA(EA])  ERELERH
Ka Wing, Patrick and Tse Ka Lok were appointed REXERZERARAEEEEWB
as the joint and several liquidators of Pacific Rise ARABEsEBEARAA(ES] AIEA
Holdings Limited (“Pacific Rise”) (formerly known as EARABDZHBRERER A BR
Top Novel Limited), a direct wholly-owned AEEARREEERES ZEEIR
subsidiary of the Company, as approved in form of Rt -ZBMNEREMEBEXHER
written resolutions by the Company in respect of TG TAERTRBEREAZERA
the winding up of Pacific Rise on the same date. BEZABEBEBR -RZTE——FN
Such Notice together with other relevant documents AZ+hB AEBLXEHESKERA
were submitted and filed in the Registrar of BXBoESE Bt EeT~BAARA
Corporate Affairs in the territory of the British Virgin AlzMBRAR  BEsEREWE ARG
Islands in October 2011. The Group lost control BEs&EN)AFEZ2EERABEES
over the operating and financing activities of Pacific E——FNAZTABABKRIEZAFTAR
Rise on 29 September 2011 and, accordingly, SE-EREE—EHNRBEEMSER - A%
Pacific Rise ceased to be a subsidiary of the BRAKILEGETFTAESEBR(REASE
Company and the assets and liabilities of Pacific BXEAZEFIEREEBETFRE)MEELEZ
Rise together with its subsidiaries (collectively the Wz o
“Pacific Rise Group”) were deconsolidated from that
of the Group since 29 September 2011 in the
current year. Pacific Rise Group has been engaged
in EMS business. The Group recognised a gain
arising from deconsolidation of the Pacific Rise
Group which had net liabilities at the time the
Group’s control was lost.
62 Ngai Lik Industrial Holdings Limited Annual Report 2012
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GAIN ON DECONSOLIDATION OF 8.
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Analysis of assets and liabilities of the Pacific Rise
Group over which control was lost was as follows:

GEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
BHE_T——_F=A=+—HILtFEE

RIEFAFT AR E QR 2 Wi ()

RERFBEZESEREZEERAED
T

2012
—Eg—_F
HK$’000
FHET
Property, plant and equipment Y% BRE&EE 7
Cash and bank balances He RiRITHET 531
Trade and other receivables B 5N H b fE U BR 3R 4,154
Trade and other payables and accruals B5RHEMENERKEFER (139,610)
Obligations under finance leases Bl & AR A e (35)
Provision 1 (17,844)
Net liabilities derecognised BUBRERBEF 5 (152,797)
Gain on deconsolidation of subsidiaries BILERETTARB AR 2 W 152,797
FINANCE COSTS 9. MEMX
The amount represents interest on bills payable. ZEBRERNERE 2B -
TAXATION CHARGE 10. BEXH
2012 2011
g el 3 —T——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FAT
Current year: REE
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEENEH (259) (76)
Other jurisdictions Hh & A = (18) v
(277) (76)

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of
the estimated assessable profit for both years.

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China
on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and
Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the
statutory tax rate of the Company’s PRC subsidiary
is 25%.

FAEMGRIDRBREMEFE 2G5 ER
5 0% F 12 16.5% < B K5+ & -

REFEARAMBEEZMGEH (R
EREREDREEABTOEERIED
AREH BB AR ZEERER25% °
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For the year ended 31 March 2012
HE_T——F=A=+—HILFE

10. TAXATION CHARGE (CONTINUED) 10.
The taxation charge for the year can be reconciled
to the profit (loss) before taxation per the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income
as follows:

REX i (H)
AFEZHRAIHEARGA ZERAR
R 2R BRI R (B1R) 2 R M T -

2012 2011
—E—_F —E——fF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FE T
Profit (loss) before taxation B %t w7 (& 18) 125,379 (104,139
Taxation (charge) credit at domestic 3Rt BT 15 fR i =
income tax rate of 16.5% 16.5% (=& —— 4 :
(2011: 16.5%) 16.5%) 5T & 2 H 18
(ZH)HEE (20,688) 17,183
Tax effect of expenses not deductible “~ 7] 1 %)“Lﬁaﬁi
for tax purpose Zﬁﬁé‘ 2 (1,218) (3,576)
Tax effect of income not taxable AR 14517\
for tax purpose 2 25,215 80
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 7 & 72 i T8 &5 18
IR E (3,576) (13,184)
Effect of different tax rates of RE AL R ARE R L&
subsidiaries operating in other Z B ARANR
jurisdictions MEEEZHRETE (17) =
Others Hh, 7 (579)
Taxation charge for the year FABIEZ N (277) (76)
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GEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
BHE_T——_F=A=+—HILtFEE

PROFIT (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR . REERMN(GE)
2012 2011
—g—C-F —T——%f
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTHET FAT
Profit (loss) for the year has been REE =N (BHE)
arrived at after charging (crediting): EHERGIA) ¢
Directors’ emoluments (note 12) = F M2 (K sE12) 1,356 1,208
Contributions to retirement benefit B8 T ZRIK
scheme of other staff & F & 2t 5K 254 266
Other staff costs: HME TR :
— severance payment to a director — X FHB AR
of a subsidiary EZVEMNE 7,636 -
— salaries and other staff benefits —FHak
HBITEF 12,969 140,264
Total staff costs BT AEER 22,215 141,738
Depreciation of property, M- BER
plant and equipment Rz E 1 888
Auditor’'s remuneration % S AT B & 1,020 1,380
Exchange loss, net e H B8 - S EE 37 1,767
Cost of inventories recognised BRERIZ
as expense* FE KA~ 99,536 682,074
Impairment loss on trade receivables & ZEWER K 2
VRN SR - 5,530
Impairment loss on other receivables /b & U Bk 3k =
B &R 10,736 7,041
Impairment loss on property, M- BEEEZEZ
plant and equipment VRN i - 4,523
Impairment loss on investment in TER—HEE AT
an associate ZBIEEE 38 =
Reversal of provision on inventories B R 1F B # 1 - (3,253)
Interest income A2 A (5) (48)
Gain on disposal of property, HEME K5
plant and equipment Kt 2 W= (23) (374)
Operating lease rentals in respect BRBRAEYWE
of office premises ZREHDNE S 792 973

Direct labour costs included in cost of inventories

recognised as an expense amounted to HK$1,469,000
(2011: HK$91,331,000) are also included in other staff

costs.

IABBRAX I GFERAZERSTRA
1,469,000/ 7T (=& — — £ : 91,331,000/% 7T)
TREIAE A & TR o
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e B R R M AT

For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE_ T —F=HA=+—BHLEFE

12. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 12. EEM2
Details of the emoluments paid or payable to the ENSENARRESZHMEFRBTO T

directors of the Company were as follows:

Year ended 31 March 2012 BE-_ZE-—_—F-A=t-ALEE

Mr.Wang Mr. Pan Mr. Lo Dr. Leung Mr. Wong Mr.
Jianqing Junfeng Wai Hung Hoi Ming Chi Keung Tom Xie Total
T@F ERE EfE RiBH H2ZA  BiE#E
£ & S & b 3 Bt S & £ & st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T#RT TFTER FET FTET T#xT TERT TFTER
(Note i) (Note i) (Note iii)
(Bt aE i)  (BEEE D) (RS i)

Fees e 300 300 156 180 240 180 1,356
Other emoluments Hinf &
Basic salaries EXFER
and allowance ==l - - - - - - -
Contributions to R KR 5 &
retirement benefits R
schemes - - - - - - -
Total emoluments B & 4258 300 300 156 180 240 180 1,356
Year ended 31 March 2011 BE-Z--FZA=t-HLEE
Mr. Tam
Norman
Mr. Wang  Mr. Pan Mr. Yeung  Mr. Lau Hok Dr. Leung Mr. Wong Mr.
Jianging  Junfeng Kwai Tong Ching Kei ~ Cheong Hoi Ming Chi Keung  Tom Xie Total

Iz AkE  HBER AERE FEE  REH  Fzw  HEE
T4 bk Givlaa s bk Bt £HE Vi @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HKS'000
FTEx TER FiEx FEx FEx FExZ FExT TFET TFTHEZR
(Note i) (Note ) (Note i)  (Note i)  (Note i)
(fEaE ) (et i) (Bakin (BEEE i) (BaE i

Fees ik 90 90 136 136 136 180 240 180 1,188
Other emoluments Hih &
Basic salaries and EXHe Rk
allowance L - - = = - - - - -
Contributions to RRE ARG 2
retirement benefits it
schemes - - 10 10 — — — = 20
Total emoluments MemE 90 90 146 146 136 180 240 180 1,208
Notes: i 5 -
0] The respective director appointed on 14 December 2010. (i) FREER T ZF+_ATHARERE -
(if) The respective director appointed on 19 January 2010 (i) FREFN _ZT—ZF - AthAEZEY
and resigned on 4 January 2011. R-B——F—AEBEE -
(iii) The respective director appointed on 19 May 2011. (iii) EREEFN_T——FRATLBEZE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments
working for the Group during the year ended 31
March 2012, all of the five individuals were not the
directors of the Company whose emoluments are
included in the disclosures in note 12 above.

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments
working for the Group during the year ended 31
March 2011, all of whom were not directors of the
Company, four of them were directors of the
Company before the capital and the group
reorganisation (the “Restructuring”) that took place
on 11 January 2010, of which two of the four
individuals were directors of the subsidiaries before
and after the Restructuring and one of the four
individuals was the son of these two directors. The
emoluments of the two individuals who were
directors of the subsidiaries before and after the
Restructuring and that of their son were within the
range from HK$8,500,001 to HK$10,000,000, while
the emolument of the remaining individual who was
a director of the Company before the Restructuring
was within the range from HK$3,000,001 to
HK$3,500,000.

13.

GAEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012

RE-S-——F=A=+-ALER
EEME

RBZE-FT——F=ZA=+—HALFE
ERNAEBZ AZSBHMALZF

BABALHUEAATES RIS
B BEAIA LXK Ry REER -

N R = ar e EIE g S lEeEE
THBRAEBZAZESFHMALZH
FIERBATHWIERARGES - MEF
MaEATHR=_ZE—ZFF—A+—H#ETZ
AN EBEHR((EARHDATERRRES -
MEATFZMEBATRELAZAE Z
B ANBARIZES  RMNAEALFHZ
—ZANLTEBZMBEZZRT - REMA
ZRIRZEANBAREEZLMBALTR
%z % F 2 Bl € 9 8,500,001 7t =
10,000,000 70 * Etp — BN ELA R AR
RAlEE 2 AL 2B £ " F3,000,001%
7T 3,500,000 7T °

The emoluments of the five highest paid individuals REARLERSTMHAZZHMES 0T :
for the year were as follow:
2012 2011
—ET—-=fF = s
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FE T
Basic salaries and allowance HEAH ¢ KER 7,087 26,659
Discretionary or performance )15 sk e R 3IR 5K 2 TE
— based bonuses (Note) 41 (P 3E) - 6,000
Contributions to retirement benefit R OKFE F 5T 2 4 51
schemes 25 60
7,112 32,719
Note: The performance related bonus payable to employees was Wax: EEE 2 RBREETEALDHBREEBIES 2

determined based on the performance of the individual
employee.

REMETE °
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e B R R M AT

For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE_ T —F=HA=+—BHLEFE

13. EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued) 13. EEME (&)
2012 2011
—¥—C-F —T——F
Number of Number of
employees employees
EE AN BB AE
Bands: I -
HK$0-HK$500,000 07 JT £500,0007% JT 2 —
HK$1,000,001-HK$1,500,000 1,000,001/ 7T £1,500,000/% 7T 1 1
HK$2,000,001-HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 T = 2,500,000/ JT 1 —
HK$3,000,001-HK$3,500,000 3,000,001/ Jt 23,500,000/ 7T 1 1
HK$8,500,001-HK$9,000,000 8,500,001 7T 29,000,000/ 7T - 1
HK$9,500,001-HK$10,000,000 9,500,001 7T £10,000,000;% 7T - 2
5 S
14. DIVIDENDS 14. KRE
No dividends were paid, declared or proposed BE—_Z——F=-A=+—HIEFELE
during the year ended 31 March 2012, nor has any R BIRsERIRNRE - B &S H
dividend been proposed since the end of the ERFETEEZZRETEANRE(ZE—
reporting period (2011: ni). —F:F)e
15. EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE 15. BREMN(BR)
The calculation of the basic earnings (loss) per RAREBAREZBRERNEF (FE)
share attributable to the owners of the Company is TR TS S E
based on the following data:
2012 2011
i et 3 —T——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
Profit (loss) for the year attributable to 7t 5T & & i & K & 7
owners of the Company for the (E18) 2 A7
purposes of basic earnings (loss) "B AENL
per share KEERH(EE) 125,102 (104,215)
Ngai Lik Industrial Holdings Limited Annual Report 2012
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GAEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
BHE_T——_F=A=+—HILERE

15. EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE (CONTINUED)  15. SR ZFI(#8)(&)

Number of ordinary shares

LiERSE
2012 2011
—E—-—%F —T——fF
(restated)
(&%)
Weighted average number of ordinary #iat & &Kk E R &EF
shares for the purposes of basic (BB 2Bk
earnings (loss) per share 04 15 B 799,438,055 793,016,668
The weighted average number of ordinary shares STEESREXRAF(EE) 2T BN E
for the purpose of basic earnings (loss) per share FHHEETUAERATAE  UstAD IR
has been retrospectively adjusted for the E——FAARBNA-E—Z-F=A=_1+
consolidation of shares and share capitalisation by BETZBRHDEHRBEBEARBEEET
an open offer on 5 September 2011 and 20 March Z &1 EARAL o
2012 respectively.
Diluted earnings (loss) per share are not presented RZE——FR-_FE——F=A=+—H -
as the Company does not have any potential HRA A METABELTEE  FK
ordinary shares at 31 March 2011 and 2012. BEAF (BRI EE7 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R R M AT

For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE_ T —F=HA=+—BHLEFE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. NE BERRE
Leasehold
improvements,
office
equipment,
Motor Plant and furniture, and
vehicles machinery fixtures Moulds Total
HEmELE
WAEE
RE BERBESE FRREE BR st
HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T8 7T FHE T FE T T T &7
COST A (B
At 1 April 2010 R-ZE—ZTFMPA—AH 6,622 1,404 1,630 1,312 10,968
Additions NE — 109 136 3,330 3,575
Disposals/written off & (6,622) (831) (86) (33) (7,572)
At 31 March 2011 R-—ZE——F=A=+—8H = 682 1,680 4,609 6,971
Additions NE = — il — 1
Derecognised upon BIFER AT AN B
deconsolidation of AR REUHER
subsidiaries — = () = (7)
Disposals/written off HE s = (682) (1,673) (4,609) (6,964)
At 31 March 2012 R=—ZE——4=HA=+—8 = = 11 = 11
ACCUMULATED Rt ERAE
DEPRECIATION AND
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 April 2010 R-ZZE—ZTFMWMA—A 4,640 29 1,348 55 6,072
Provided for the year FEEE 352 60 74 402 888
Impairment loss recognised & & 3 8 (B & 18 — 540 245 3,738 4,523
Eliminated on B 8 B 3 8
disposals/written off (4,992) (7) (15) (1) (5,015)
At 31 March 2011 R=-ZE——F=A=+—8 — 622 1,652 4194 6,468
Provided for the year FERE = = 1 - 1
Eliminated on disposals/ & S B T 8
written off — (622) (1,652) (4,194) (6,468)
At 31 March 2012 R-—ZE——F=A=+—H — — 1 — 1
CARRYING AMOUNTS BRE B
At 31 March 2012 R_TE——F=A=+—H — — 10 — 10
At 31 March 2011 R—ZE——F=HA=+—H — 60 28 415 503
The above items of property, plant and equipment Ltz BELREEBTAKREER
are depreciated on a reducing balance basis at the WEER TS FRTE
following rates per annum:
Motor vehicles 20% R E 20%
Plant and machinery 5%-20% R 5 fo 1 25 5%-20%
Office equipment 10%-20% MAERE 10%—20%
Furniture and fixtures 10%-20% &S 10%—-20%
Moulds 15%-25% BA 15%—-25%
Leasehold improvements 20% HEMEEE 20%
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17.

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GAEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE-_T-——fFf=-"A=+—HILEE

17 R-BEBREQAIZ2ER

HK$'000
FET

Cost of investment, unlisted BEMKA FEE™
As at 31 March 2011 R-E——F=A=+—H 38
Impairment loss recognised in profit or loss REREERZREEBE (38)
As at 31 March 2012 RN-E——FE=F=+—¢H _
The Group had an interest in the following N—E——FF - FT——F=H=+—H -

associate as at 31 March 2011 and 2012:

Place/country

AEERU T B S AR B S

Proportion of nominal

of Class of shares value of issued capital Principal
Name of entity incorporation held held by the Group activity
= M Bk 3L 3 B AREFACET
ERzE /BR Fit $5 B% 15 8 51 BAEEZESL EEEFH
2012 2011
—®--fF -7 %
Victor Bond Limited BVI Ordinary 49% 49% Inactive
HEsBR A7 EBERES TR 49% 49% TRmEE

Ngai Lik Industrial Holdings Limited Annual Report 2012
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- Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R R M AT

For the year ended 31 March 2012
HE_T——F=A=+—HILFE

17. ' INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (CONTINUED) 17 R-—BBREQAR 2R (E)
The summarised financial information in respect of REEBE AT 2 MEERBESINNT
the Group’s associate is set out below:

2011 & 2012

—T——fF

MZT——4F

HK$’000

FET

Total assets BERE 78

Total liabilities BfERE —

Net assets BEFE 78
Group’s share of net assets of an associate REBESE—HBERG 2

BEFE 38

Revenue W &= —

Profit for the year F 2 it A =

Other comprehensive income Hin 2 mEUKA —
Group’s share of profit of an associate for the ZA&EEDE—EEE QR 2

year F 5 5% T -
Group’s share of reserve of an associate for AEED(H—HEBE AT 2

the year FERE —

Ngai Lik Industrial Holdings Limited Annual Report 2012
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18.

1k

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GAEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
BHE_T——_F=A=+—HILFEE

INVENTORIES 18. RE&
2012 2011
—g——f —ZE——%F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTHET FHE T
Raw materials e - 1,469
Work in progress T8 m - 266
Finished goods 2% i - 7,451
— 9,186

RECEIVABLES ARISING FROM OIL AND GAS
SALES CONTRACTS

Receivables arose from oil and gas sales contracts
which are either settled by letter of credit or bills
issued by banks with high credit-ratings assigned
by international credit-rating agencies and are
receivable with an average credit period ranging
from seven days to six months after the bills of
lading date of delivery or by telegraphic transfer.

The following is an aged analysis of these
receivables presented, based on the invoice date,
at the end of the reporting period.

19.

AHRRARFEESH ZBRER

AR RARBEESN 2 BBERRTIA
EBRREEFARBERTREENIRL
RITBLZERARAEBEE  FHE
ENENEREERRNRNEEZ AL
tAEREALSE -

AT /R P 2 51| e W BR 3R R 3 & Bl 46 R B
REZARETZRE DN

2012 2011

—g—--f —E——%F

HK$’000 HK$’000

TET FAT

Current-30 days BN EA-30H 99,210 ==
90 to 180 days 90H =180H 123,622 —
222,832 —

No such receivables had been past due at the end
of the reporting period.

As at 31 March 2012, receivables of
HK$123,622,000 (2011: nil) had been discounted to
several banks with recourse. Accordingly, the Group
continues to recognise the full carrying amount of
these receivables and has recognised the cash
received as a secured borrowing (see note 24).

R EPERE

% % WA R A

R-ZTE——F=H=+—H - 123,622,000
BL(CE——F T)ZRKREREME
FERITEHRNIE WA BRE - Bt
REBEERBERANLEEKERZE
HE TERERZREEREEERESR
(R 5E24) o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R R M AT

For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE_ T —F=HA=Z=+—BHLEFE

19

20.

RECEIVABLES ARISING FROM OIL AND GAS 19.

SALES CONTRACTS (Continued)

Receivables arising from oil and gas sales contacts
in currencies other than functional

denominated

BHRARRHEES N ZBYRR ()

NHEEEER 2NEEBAINIE G
BZOMRRARBEECHNMELZE

currencies of the relevant group entities are set out W BR SR E T AT
below:
2012 2011
—E—-—% —T——%
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FAT
RMB AR 85,442 -
TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 20. EFRHMEWBRRRAMGRE
PREPAYMENTS
2012 2011
—g—-=f —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FAT
Trade receivables B 5 e W BR 5K - 8,834
Less: Impairment loss R E & 1R = (5,529)
- 3,305
Amount due from Scheme Subsidiaries & Y 5t 2 ff & 2 7
(Note) KA (Pt 5E) - 30,366
Other receivables and prepayments Hfb KRR K
TE AT 5RIAE - 663
Less: Impairment loss on amount due & : & U 51 2 Bff B A &)
from Scheme Subsidiaries RIE 2 REBE - (7,041)
— 27,293

Note:

The capital and the group reorganisation as disclosed in
annual report of the Company for the year ended 31
March 2011 dated 30 June 2011 were completed on 11
January 2010. In order to reorganise the Group and to
facilitate the implementation of the group reorganisation
and creditor scheme, which split the Group into a group
comprising the Company and certain subsidiaries retained
under the control of the Company and a group comprising
other subsidiaries (“Scheme Subsidiaries”) which were
controlled by the administrators appointed under Creditor
Scheme (the “Administrators’ Vehicle”),
Subsidiaries were transferred to the Administrators’ Vehicle

the Scheme

of the Creditor Scheme. The Group ceased to control the
Scheme Subsidiaries after the transfer.

Ngai Lik Industrial Holdings Limited Annual Report 2012
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GAEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
BHE_T——_F=A=+—HILFEE

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 20. ESRHEMERERREASREE)

PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

Note: (Continued) B 3E : (8)
The amount represented the expenses incurred by the heHEE AEERTEMNBARXNERE
Scheme Subsidiaries after 11 January 2010 which were 2 ZTF A+ BEME4AZHAX - E
paid by the Group on behalf of the Scheme Subsidiaries. U &t &1 KT B A R 3 E Z R {E & 810,736,000
Impairment loss on amount due from Scheme Subsidiaries BIL(ZE——F:7,04,0008 T) EREBE=
amounting to HK$10,736,000 (2011: HK$7,041,000) was T——FZA=+—HILFEBR - k0N
recognised during the year ended 31 March 2012. The REREER AEER 2ERERERE
amount (net of impairment loss) was unsecured, interest- R o

free and repayable on demand.

Customers from EMS business were generally EMSEHEF 2 Bk B R 5 — A% LA BN HR
granted credit terms of letter of credit at sight or ERAMRIAKE A XN7HEI0BERAMR B
open accounts from 7 days to 30 days. Longer ReBUBEHASERY RPEBHRFR
credit periods were granted to several customers WEABBMRARBREZEPEREEG T
which had long business relationship with the RERZHMEERE -

Group and strong financial position.

The following is an analysis of trade receivables by R EHERBRBEEZAHZN 2B
age (net of impairment losses), presented based on SERERANBRREERE) R 2TH
invoice date, at the end of the reporting period: ™
2012 2011
—E—-—f —T——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET T
Current-30 days BN HA-80H - 2,444
31-60 days 31-60H — 4
61-90 days 61-90H — 856
Over 90 days 90B M + - 1
— 3,305
In determining the recoverability of trade RETEE 5 B W R 2 7] iy B # e e -
receivables, the Group considered any change in AEEZREESERBERNEE R
the credit quality of the trade receivable from the FAOMBEEREHAERKIEBEZEER
date credit was initially granted up to the end of EZRRAE RERIOZEHEHERBR
the reporting period. According to the recent ESHEERMENEREDEELRE -

settlement, the directors believed that there was no
impairment required as at the end of the reporting
period.

Ngai Lik Industrial Holdings Limited Annual Report 2012 75
RAOTEEBERRAR 20129 ]|




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R R M AT

For the year ended 31 March 2012

BE_ T —F=HA=Z=+—BHLEFE
20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 20. EZRHMEKRRRBASREE)
PREPAYMENTS (Continued)
Movements in the allowance for doubtful debts AERBE22EY
2012 2011
—F—C-F —F——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TFHET FHBT
Balance at the beginning of the year & ¥ 45 4 5,529 =
Impairment losses recognised on BB Z FE R S R
trade receivables VEREN TR - 5,530
Amounts written off as uncollective WsH AEEkE 2 &5 - )
Impairment losses reversed BB R EE 8 (5,529) =
Balance at the end of the year F 4R 4t - 5,529
Ageing of trade receivables which are past due but not ERHEERBEEZRRER 2 RR
impaired
2012 2011
—E—-—%F —T——fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
1-60 days 1-60H — 4
61-90 days 61-90H — 856
Over 90 days 90H M - 1
Total #Et - 861
Trade receivables denominated in currencies other NEEEEER 2EEEUINEE ST
than functional currencies of the relevant group BzEZEWERRETLT :
entities are set out below:
2012 2011
i et 3 —ZT——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET FET
usD E7T - 857
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21.

22.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/BANK BALANCES
AND CASH

Bank balances comprise short-term bank deposits
with maturity of three months or less. The short-
term bank deposits carry interest at market rate of
0.35% (2011: 0.35%) per annum.

At 31 March 2011, pledged bank deposits
represented deposits pledged to banks to secure
banking facilities granted to the Pacific Rise Group.
Deposits amounting to HK$686,000 were pledged
to secure undrawn facilities and were therefore
classified as current assets. The deposits were
released upon termination of banking facilities
granted to the Pacific Rise Group during the
current year.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND
ACCRUALS

GAEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012

BE-_Z——HF=-A=+—HILFE
2., DEASTESR /BOTEERES
ROTREOENNAA=EAAXATEE

HRTER - EHETERIRTBERN
R0.35% (—FE——F:0.835%)5T &

R-ZZE——E=A=+—0 2 BEHRT
BRMEESEEAERETEEMER
T RITZF R £ ¥ £686,000/ It 2
GEREEFURSARIREE Amo
HARHEE EHERARAFERIE
MESSEBERHETRERER -

2. BSREMENRIRETEA

2012 2011
—ET—-=fF ==
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#EIT FAT
Trade payables B S EMNER - 3,165
Other payables H Ath B BR K
— Amounts due to Scheme — fﬁ L
Subsidiaries (Note (i) A1 R IE (B 3 (i) - 21,650
— Others = ,J’@, 4,413 18,708
Accruals FEstE R
— Accrued royalty expenses (Note (i) — FEHEFEE B
(B 2 (i) - 114,688
— Others — HAfb 1,004 —
5,417 158,211

Notes:

(i) The amount represented the rental expenses payable,
machinery lease payables, and subcontracting fees
payables to Scheme Subsidiaries. The amounts were

interest-free and repayable on demand.

(if) The amount represented the royalty expenses accrued
based on the management’s best estimation of the
Group’s potential liability in relation to intellectual
properties used for the production of electronic products.

B

(i) e BEEERNAENBARZENESRX
ENEEEERENIHAER - LEBERR
BRARERER -

(ii) CHERBEEEHEAREEEFEM
Z%ﬂ;:ﬁé*&*ﬁﬁﬁzzﬁﬁl/@“ﬁﬁf P2 &
ERFMAESHIENEERMS -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R R M AT

For the year ended 31 March 2012
HE_T——F=A=+—HILFE

22. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND 2. BFRHMEMRRKRETER(E)
ACCRUALS (Continued)
The following is an aged analysis of trade payables R EHERGEREZZHHEN 2 E
presented based on the invoice date at the end of SEMERERRSTAT

the reporting period:

2012 2011
—F—-% —ET——%
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT FAT
Current-30 days BNE8-30H - 1,246
31-60 days 31-60H — 206
61-90 days 61-90H — 1,695
Over 90 days 90H I — 18
- 3,165
Trade payables denominated in currencies other NHEEERER e EBEUINEEE
than the functional currencies of the relevant group BE2ESENERREINNOT
entities are set out below:
2012 2011
—g-C-F —T——%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FATT
RMB AR - 262
UsD ETT - 1,804
— 2,066
23. PAYABLES ARISING FROM OIL AND GAS 23. AERAARREESHNZENR
PURCHASE CONTRACTS
Payables arising from oil and gas purchase OHERRARBESHZENRER
contracts of HK$96,678,000 (2011: nil) are aged 96,678,000 T(ZF — —F: F) ¥R
within 30 days based on the invoice date at the SHEREREBEZAHNE Rk A
end of the reporting period and are granted by OB - it ERMENEREER R
suppliers with an average credit period ranging TtRERNEANEZFAEE Hﬂ B e

from seven days to six months after the bills of
lading date of delivery.
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24.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BILLS PAYABLE

GAEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
BHE_T——_F=A=+—HILFEE

24, EREE

2012 2011
—g—-C-F —=——%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FAT

Secured borrowings FHRAEE
Discounted bills with recourse b7 3B R4 2 BRI 2R 123,622 =
Less: upfront interest paid B TR A (1,337) —
122,285 —

The Group entered into oil and gas contracts in the
current year. Certain receivables arising from oil
and gas contracts are discounted to banks with
recourse to facilitate the operation of the oil and
gas transactions. Accordingly, the Group continues
to recognise these discounted bill receivables (see
note 19) and has recognised the cash received as
secured borrowings. Discounted bills with recourse
are interest bearing at fixed rate with a range from
3.87% to 510% (2011: nil) per annum. Finance cost
will be charged to profit or loss over the relevant
period of the discounted bills with recourse
amounted to HK$1,189,000 (2010: nil) and
unamortised portion of finance cost in relation to
these discounted bills as at 31 March 2012
amounting to HK$1,337,000 (2011: nil) will be
charged to profit or loss in 2013. The interest rate
is determined at the date of inception. All
discounted bills with recourse are secured by bill
receivables as at 31 March 2012 (see note 19).

AREBRANFERLABARRAZEH -
BHBETABERRAIRS AR
AARREHWMEEZE TEKFIEE R
BITIEHBREE - WHIAABRE - A A
SEEERR L EEWENIEZE (R
19) WHEWIRESHERADERES -
MEEBREZCHMBEREIENTEF
3.87%&E510% (ZE——F : T) 2 E T F
KB o MMEAR NGRS B REZA
RERZ2EBEHHAEBEEPNGR - FT8
& R A1189,0008 L(ZE —FTF: F) -
MR- ——F=A=+—HHKEGIRE
AR 2 e AR B 55 Rl X AN E26191,387,000
BT ZCE——F  D)BE =T —=F2
BRI - EXDRFERBHETE - B
—T——F=ZA=Z1+—H FEWSBER
W 2 BHIR 15 T5 A FE U = 4% 1 3K 18 (R BT
F19) o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R R M AT

For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE_ T —F=HA=Z=+—BHLEFE
25. AMOUNTS DUE TO A SUBSTANTIAL

SHAREHOLDER OF THE COMPANY/RELATED
COMPANIES/AN ASSOCIATE

The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

The amounts represented:

(i) amount due to Frontier Global Group Limited,
approximately HK$7,750,000 (2011: nil), which
is a substantial shareholder of the Company;

(i)  amounts due to related companies of
approximately HK$11,943,000 (2011:
HK$2,839,000), in which Mr. Wang Jianging,
the Chairman and a substantial shareholder
of the Company is also a director; and

(i)  amount due to an associate of the Group of
approximately HK$38,000 (2011: HK$38,000),
its details are disclosed in note 17.

Ngai Lik Industrial Holdings Limited Annual Report 2012
ROTEEBAERAR 2012F 3§/

25.

ERARATERR HEAR/-HB

BENRAZRE

REREER RERARENRE

REREH

—
=

(i

(i)

R EEERREBER AR ZHNE
#97,750,0008 T (ZE——F : F) >
ENGIV=-Y. VNCIPAE2:3 'S &

JE 5 B8 2 A |) 2 3B #911,943,000
BT (ZZ——4%:2,839,000/&7T)
ARREFREIERRIRELEE
MBZAREE K&

B AEE - R 2 RIEL
38,000/%8 7t (=& — — 4 : 38,000/8
J0) EFBERWEI7THE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

26. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES

GAEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
BHE_T——_F=A=+—HILFEE

26. BMERNORE

Present value of

Minimum lease minimum lease

payments payments
EisKiE: EfREEEZHE
2012 2011 2012 2011
—B—_—fF " T——F ZF—-F " T——F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FA& T TERT FHET
The maturity of the BB ALEZ
obligations under finance  fE M EABR AT :
leases is as follows:
Within one year —F A - 32 - 32
More than one year, but  —&F I F{E
not exceeding two years BB F - 3 = 3
— 35 - 38
Less: Future finance R REE B A
charges = = = =
Present value of lease MEHRIEZBRE
obligations - €6 - 35

Less: Amounts due within i : FE R B B E B
one year shown under TER—FAE
current liabilities e /|

Amounts due after one ER—FREEZ

year KA

The average lease term was 4 years. Interest rates
underlying all obligations under finance leases are
at Hong Kong Inter-bank Offered Rate plus 0.8%

FHROERSEF - FTAMEMREQX
EHBANEXO BT BRTARFENE
M % 0.8% K [ FE F 7 E3% °

IIF

per annum or fixed interest rate of 3% per annum.

During the year ended 31 March 2012,

in note 8.

the BE_T——F="A=+T—HLLFE @
obligations under finance leases are derecognised
upon deconsolidation of subsidiaries as disclosed

BHEOAENM EFMBEER R ILEAE
AW B AREREBURRER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R R M AT

For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE_ T —F=HA=Z=+—BHLEFE

27.  PROVISION

The amount represented warranty provision made
during the year ended 31 March 2011 based on
the management’s best estimate of the Group’s
potential liability in relation to warranty provided to
customers for electronic products. The amount of

21. B

provision was estimated based on prior experience
and industry averages for defective products.

BHRBREEE_T——F=A=1+—H
LEREREEEBUEAKERETEM
AEFRERE 2EEREZ KEMGT
FiER2RERE - BEFRLRESB
EEBREAREFHHBELME -

HK$'000
FAT
At 1 April 2010 and 31 March 2011 RZZE—ZFTFHA—B K
—_E——%=A=+—H 17,844
Derecognised upon deconsolidation of MR IR A FTAKTE AR B EUE
subsidiaries (note 8) % 38 (P 5E8) (17,844)
At 31 March 2012 RZE——F=A=+—H =
28. DEFERRED TAXATION 28. EEHRE
The following are the major deferred taxation NTREBRZFEELERIBER(EE)
liabilities (assets) recognised and movements & EH#
thereon:
Accelerated
tax
depreciation Tax losses Total
IR IR E i I8 B5 18 #Et
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAET
At 1 April 2010 RZZE—ZTFMA—H 554 (554) =
(Credit) charge to profit FAEERKRGIA)
or loss for the year mex (474) 474 —
At 31 March 2011 MRZE——%F
=—A=+—H 80 (80) —
Derecognised upon i = AN
deconsolidation of RNAEBEUEER
subsidiaries (80) 80 =

At 31 March 2012

RZE——F
=A=+—H
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GAEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
BHE_T——_F=A=+—HILFEE

28. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued) 28. EEHE(E)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had RBEERERT  AEBERBA 2
unused tax losses of HK$266,000 (2011: 15 B 18266,0008 (= T — — F:
HK$169,216,000) available for offset against future 169,216,000/ 7T) - Al % 38 R 2R i@ Al &2
profits and those can be carried forward indefinitely. BHERIBNERBEE - ELERIBEE
Deferred taxation assets were recognised in respect EfR — e — E=HE i B4 51
of such tax losses of HK$482,000 at 31 March T8 85 15482,00078 7T T IAFE R ° R K 2K
2011. No deferred taxation assets have been m A B BRI AR MR IEEIE
recognised in relation to tax loss of HK$266,000 266,000/ 7t (=& — — % : 168,734,00078
(2011: HK$168,734,000) due to the unpredictability TLME MERRELEHBEEE - 18
of future profit streams. All unrecognised tax losses AERTIB S E A ER L o

may be carried forward indefinitely.

29. SHARE CAPITAL 29. BRA&
Nominal value Number of
per share shares Amount
BiEEHEE Ik 8B ok}
HK$ HK$'000
7T FHET
Authorised: A TE
As at 1 April 2010 and RZZE—ZFTFHA—
31 March 2011 AR=—ZF——%F
= A=1+—H 0.01  12,000,000,000 120,000
Decrease on share H R 1D & g m R 2
consolidation (10,800,000,000) —
Increase in authorised 5 TE BR AN 38 0
share capital 0.1 8,800,000,000 880,000
As at 31 March 2012 NZT——4F
—A=+—H 10,000,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BETEHR:
As at 1 April 2010 and RZE—ZFFMA—
31 March 2011 AR—ZT——4F
=A=+—H 0.01 7,930,166,684 79,302
Capital reduction (note a)  B&AS Bl sk (Fff 5Ea) (7,137,150,016) —
Issue of shares (note b) 1T (MY 3EDb) 0.1 226,576,190 22,657
As at 31 March 2012 R-ZT—=F
—A=+—H 1,019,592,858 101,959
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For the year ended 31 March 2012

BE
2%

30.

== aa= Ee = ElleETE

SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes:

(@) On 27 July 2011, the Company implemented share
consolidation that every ten issued and unissued shares
of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the Company will
be consolidated into one consolidated share of HK$0.10
each in the issued and unissued share capital of the
Company. Upon such share consolidation, the total
authorised number of shares and the total issued and fully
paid shares of the Company have changed to
1,200,000,000 shares and 793,016,668 shares of HK$0.10
each, respectively, effective on 5 September 2011.

(b) The Company issued 226,576,190 ordinary shares at a
subscription price of HK$0.441 each, by the way of open
offer of every two offer shares for every seven existing
shares held on 24 February 2012. The transaction was
completed on 20 March 2012. The net proceeds of
approximately HK$98,885,000 was received, of which
HK$22,657,000 were recorded as the share capital of the
Company. The new shares rank pari passu with the
existing shares in all aspect.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates a MPF Scheme for all
qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of
the scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in funds under the control of trustee.

In addition, the Group’s contribution to a local
municipal government retirement scheme in the
PRC are expensed as fall due while the local
municipal government in the PRC undertakes to
assume the retirement benefit obligations of all
existing and future retirees of the qualified staff in
the PRC.

The retirement benefit cost charged to the profit or
loss in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income represents contributions
payable to the schemes by the Group at the rates
specified in the rules of the schemes.
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(@) RZFE——F+LAZ++H8  AAAETRM
aft BTRAAARA+TEGREEOIHB T
ZEBORABIRMDEESHAR—BRARRA
BERTRRBTRATEREEIOR T2
EOHRMD c RIRG & B - ARBREE R M
BRBUARBBETRABRRMDEE DRI EE A
1,200,000,000% }793,016,668f% & & M &
010 T2kt BEZE——FNARHERAE
e

(b) AARBBAN-_E——F_A _+HWBME
BEZBERBEROGBETENREEROZ
APHABTE HREESRANE T HT
226,576,190 LB - RHR T —=—F=
AZ+BHZEK BERBRZHABREZFELD
98,885,000/ It * H #122,657,0007% 7T A B& 7
EARRBIIRA - FIRESH EHER A RMHD
TERSER -

=3 SRS |
AEBARFRAREBEZAAKRRBAR
YRESEHE - B ZAEDERRLA
RH 2 EERE BAKEZAESH
BRIE -

SE SN - AN B B BLE T BT R R AT
S 2 HRIMNELERIIMERST  MPEE
BT A AEMARA R RERF
BeaBEBREKER 2 RERA -

REFEEERABRBR 2EBSEERANGKZ
RRAR AR AN 48 AN & BR 5T IR E A
L EREA ZHK -



31.

32.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GAEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
BHE_T——_F=A=+—HILFEE

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 3. REHERE
At 31 March 2011, the Group had commitments of R-ZBE——FE=A=+—8 A&EEH
HK$496,000 falling due within one year for future AYMERHEMEERBER —FAEWZ
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable TARECEHNEN AR RERS
operating leases in respect of office premises and 2B HE R496,0008 T c KT —ZF =
other assets. The Group does not have operating A=+—H ASEHELEHERE -
lease commitments at 31 March 2012.
Operating lease payments represented rental KEHERBREAEERE THAME
payable by the Group for certain office premises. ERzEE HHODKEEHERK " F5H
Leases were negotiated for an average term of one HERE—F -
year.
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND OTHER 32. BREAIRZFREMEKEE
DISCLOSURES
(@)  Apart from those transactions and balances (@ BREVFEBWEZZER D REHRIN
disclosed in note 25, the Group does not 7N 5= B 70 PR (I 4F S BT A AT ] B a3
have any related party transactions for both ARG o
years.
(b)  Compensation of key management personnel b)) FEEBAEZHMH
The remuneration of members of key AEECFEEBEEKE(RAFE
management of the Group other than the ERINZB AT
directors of the Company are as follows:
2012 2011
—E—-C—%F —T——fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT FHET
Basic salaries and allowance EXFH e K2R 5,744 31,546
Contributions to retirement R ARTE T F B4 K
benefit scheme 29 48
5,773 31,594
The remuneration of the directors of the ARREZTME N E12HKE -
Company is disclosed in note 12.
Ngai Lik Industrial Holdings Limited Annual Report 2012
BRATXEEERAA 2012F # 85




86

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

=)

B %% R M

For the year ended 31 March 2012

BE_F—

== N =0 — HIEFE

32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND OTHER
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(b)

Compensation of key management personnel
(Continued)

In addition, the Group entered into a number
of oil and gas sales and purchase contracts
with a company established in the PRC (the
“PRC Entity”), which Mr. Wang Jianging, the
Chairman and chief executive officer of the
Company, is a general manager of the PRC
Entity, amounting to HK$157,308,000 and
HK$424,200,000 respectively in the current
year. At the end of the reporting period, the
Group has a receivable arising from an oil
sales contract with the PRC Entity of
HK$85,442,000, which arrangement was
made for settlement by letter of credit or bills
issued by the PRC Entity’ banks (with high
credit-ratings assigned by international credit-
rating agencies) and are receivable with an
average credit period ranging from seven
days to six months after the bills of lading
date of delivery.

Consultancy service income amounting to
HK$5,119,000 is settled on behalf of the
Group’s customers by a company incorporated
in Hong Kong, being a subsidiary of the PRC
Entity and Mr. Wang Jianging is the sole
director.

The Group entered into a sales contract to
sell gas amounting to HK$6,516,000 (2011:
nil) with a company established in the PRC,
of which its controlling shareholder is a close
family member of Mr. Wang Jianging. At the
end of the reporting period, the Group has a
receivable arising from such a sales contract
with this company of HK$6,516,000.
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(b)

TEEBARZHEM ()

BN RAFEE  AEBE—FERF
Bl 2 Aal (PRI E RS )R] % (&
ARERARBEEGH  HEIHA
157,308,0007% 7T K424,200,0007 7T
MARRERRITBBHETEBL
ERZTBHER ZBEKLE  Nfs
HERE  ASBEFEEBAE
UZAHBEENZIERERA
85,442,000/ 7T * XL BET AR B E
BRTEEBEEFTAKBET
mszzwz)%%21*)5@#&%‘:#,%
CEHYEEHEEREE R
7§‘tE|I/\1.)E]T% S

#4538 BR 7% 42 A.5,19,0007% 7 £ — B
REBEMA L2 AR EARE
PEFPEE RATNATHER
GF PNOREUES S XS 1ia
B -

AEBEHE-—ERPEKZ 2 AAE]
M—IEEE AR - 8H 56,516,000
TL(ZE——F )2 RAR %A
AZERRREETIZEEEBE
B2 RIERE o IRk SR RE -
AEBMEZARGYZZEHEES
#9 2 JE U BR 38 56,516,000 TT ©



33. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSI

COMPANY

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GAEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE-_T——=-"A=+—HILFE

TION OF THE 33. ZAARHMEMRRER

Statement of financial position of the Company at RMEPLERE - NQ A2 1% Ak R &

the end of the reporting period is
follows:

summarised as FEEaA T

2012 2011
—E——-%F e o
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FAETT
Non-current assets EMENE E
Investments in subsidiaries REBRR 2 E — 1
Amount due from a subsidiary e — KB A A
RIE 85,169 —
85,169 1
Current assets M E E
Tax recoverable A U [B] 7% 18 - 45
Bank balances and cash ROTEFAE S 10,843 40
10,843 85
Current liabilities mEAaE
Other payables H i & BR K 631 2,013
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEAST BT /B A Rl 3k 1E - 2,046
Amount due to a related company JES— R REE A A
IR 8,060 —
Tax payable FE1 B IR - 45
8,691 4104
Net current assets (liabilities) MBEE(BE)FRE 2,152 (4,019)
Total assets less current liabilities REERRDEE 87,321 (4,018)
Capital and reserves &% A K 5% {5
Share capital [N 101,959 79,302
Reserves (note 34) i 5 (T 5E34) (14,638) (83,320)
Total equity (deficits) s (BB 87,321 (4,018)
Ngai Lik Industrial Holdings Limited Annual Report 2012
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e B R R M AT

For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE_ T —F=HA=+—BHLEFE

34. RESERVES 34, R
Share Other Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total
BiriE HtbtEE RitEs st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FATT FAT FAT FHET
(note)
(Bt aE)
THE COMPANY AATF
At 1 April 2010 RZE—FF
mA—H 94,972 71,372 (241,505) (75,161)
Loss and total AEZEER
comprehensive 2HERY B85
expense for the year — — (8,159) (8,159)
At 31 March 2011 MNZE——%F
=A=+—A” 94,972 71,372 (249,664) (83,320)
Shares issued BRI G 77,263 - — 77,263
Transaction costs BATIRD FE(L
attributable to issue of %X 5k AN
shares (1,035) — — (1,035)
Loss and total AEFEER
comprehensive 2HERY 858
expense for the year — — (7,546) (7,546)
At 31 March 2012 R-—E—=
=A=+—H 171,200 71,372 (257,210) (14,638)
Note: The other reserve represented the credit arising from the fiiak: EMEEERABIRAES 2ERSE - RAX
capital reduction where the par value of each existing BB EBBUHAFEFESRBEBERD 28 ERKR
share will be reduced from HK$0.10 to HK$0.01 by the AFFH0.09E T HERBERN 2EERA
cancellation of HK$0.09 of the paid-up capital on each 01078 JT Bl & £0.01% 7T °

existing share in prior year.
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For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE-_ZT——F=A=+—HLEE

35. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 3. MEARAFE

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries at 31 March RZE——FR=-F——F==+—8"
2012 and 2011 are as follows: RRARIMBRABFBWT :

Nominal value Percentage of nominal
of issued value of issued share

Place of ordinary share/ capital/registered
incorporation/ Place of registered capital held by
Name of subsidiary registration operation capital the Company Principal activities
ERTEEK  FAIBFAHSBITRAE
MEBASEE R 3L i 3 B EEHE HMKRAEE SREFEEZESE FEXH
2012 2011

—T——-F —_T——F

Ample Power Limited Samoa Hong Kong US$1,000 1004# 100" Inactive
CRHBRAR % 2 35 b 1,000% 7T 100# 100* EiEE %
Din Wai Digital Limited Samoa Hong Kong US$100 1004# 100* Trading of electronic products
BERBBAERQAF PEEE BB 1003 7T 100# 100 EEEFER
Din Wai Services (Macao Commercial Macao Macao MOP1,000,000 100# 100" Inactive
Offshore) Limited
B ARG ORI = X R LA P 1,000,0003% 9 7T 100# 100" EEEHE
ARIQA
Elite Novel Limited BVI BVI US$100 1004# 100* Investment holding
BKEBRRAT REBRAES REBRZES 100% 7T 100# 100" REER
Firmwill Investments Limited BVI BVI US$1 100 100 Investment holding
BRIEEFRRA HBRE LS HBR LS 1£ 7T 100 100 KRB K
Fully World Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$1 100* 100* Qil trading
LERRADR & &8 178 7T 100* 100" AMES
Grand More Enterprises Limited Samoa Hong Kong US$100 1004# 100* Trading of electronic products
RBEECEBRAT % 2 35 &E 1002 7T 100# 100* BEZEEFER
Ngai Lik Enterprises Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$3,000,000 1004# 100* Trading of electronic products
RNEEARRA & & 3,000,000/ 7T 100# 1000 EEBEFEM
Ngai Lik Industrial Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$10,000 1004# 100" Inactive
BOEXBRRAF BE BE 10,0007% 7T 1004 100" EELX
Ngai Lik International Trading Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$1 100* 100* Trading of electronic products
RABRESERAA & & 178 7T 100* 1000 EEBEFEM
Techno Sea Limited BVI BVI US$1 100* 100* Investment holding
HEERRR HBRE LS HEBR LB 1£70 100* 100* REEK
Pacific Rise Holdings Limited BVI BVI UsS$100 100# 100 Investment holding
(formerly known as Top Novel
Limited)
ESKEERAR(FBEARARAR) RBRAHES REBRZES 100% 7T 100# 100 HREER
Yigin Investments Limited BVI BVI US$1 100 100 Investment holding
RYKRE DA HBRE LS HEBR LB 1£7T 100 100 R EEK
BEMNEERRHERRIA PRC PRC US$990,000 100* 100 Gas trading
(note a)
BEMNEERREERRAA A A 990,000% 7T 100* 100" RAREH
(Ff iEa)
* Interest held by the Company through subsidiaries. = RAGIBEBRBATIIER 2R -
# Pacific Rise was undergone voluntarily winding up since # B ZT——FNA-_THhBERETAM
29 September 2011, the assets and liabilities of Pacific ER O BoEEHB EERABEBERAHRKRIEES
Rise Group were deconsolidated from that of the Group HAKREER o
since then.
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For the year ended 31 March 2012
HE_Z—-—F=RA=+—HLFE

35. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Notes:

(@) The subsidiary is set up as wholly-owned foreign
investment enterprise registered in the PRC.

(b) None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities
subsisting at 31 March 2012 or at any time during the
year.
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Financial Summary

MR

Year ended 31 March

BE=ZHA=+—HLEE

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
Z¥—-F —E——F Z2-ZF —ZZNF ZZTIENF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT T T T FHET
RESULTS ES
Revenue (Oil and gas contracts) Uz (A i & XA
BEHX) 1,900,986 — — — —
Revenue (EMS business) I 5 (EMS % 7%) 100,861 675,518 856,141 1,851,078 3,086,972
Profit (loss) before taxation B 7A@ Al (B518) 125,379 (104,139) (31,096)  (932,221) (157,414)
Taxation (charge) credit RE(XZH)ER (277) (76) (98,302) 15,893 20,863
Profit (loss) for the year FE s (EE) 125,102 (104,215) (129,398) (916,328) (136,551)
Attributable to: LATFA L A :
Owners of the Company RRBHER A 125,102 (104,215)  (129,398)  (916,328)  (136,551)
Non-controlling interests FE 5 R A = - — — — —
125102 (104,215  (129,398)  (916,328)  (136,551)
As at 31 March
W=BA=+—H
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
Ze——-F —T——F ZT—FTF ZTTNEF ZTTN\F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FAT FHT FAT TFAT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BERERE
Total assets BEE 336,185 46,608 164,306 1,071,088 2,219,737
Total liabilities BweE (244,464)  (179,088)  (192,571) (1,052,435) (1,281,756)
91,721 (132,480) (28,265) 18,653 937,981
Equity (deficits) attributable to AAEHEB AEG
owners of the Company (B 91,721  (132,480)  (28,265) 17,633 933,961
Non-controlling interests FE1E AR M 2 - — — 1,020 4,020
91,721  (132,480)  (28,265) 18,653 937,981
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